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December 8, 2015

Honorable Chairman and
Members of the
Colorado River Commission of Nevada

It is a pleasure for us to present the Comprehensive Aimual financial Report (CAFR) of the
Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) for the year ended June 30, 2015,
prepared by the financial and administrative division staff. This CAFR is published to fulfill
state law and bond covenants requiring such within six months of the close of each fiscal year.
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based on a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. The Commission’s internal controls have been developed with the
assistance of the State of Nevada Controller’s office. Because the cost of internal control should
not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Piercy Bowler Taylor and Kern, Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors, audited the
Commission’s fiscal 2015 basic financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements of the Commission are free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Commission’s basic
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are fairly presented, in all material
respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
(GAAP). The independent auditors’ report is presented in the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The Commission’s MD&A is presented in the financial section of this
report.

555 E. Washington Avenue, Suite 3100, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101-1065 Phone: (702) 486-2670
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THE COMMISSION

The Commission has broad statutory authority to establish policy for the management of theState of Nevada’s (the State or Nevada) allocation of power and water resources from theColorado River. As a state agency, it comprises a discretely presented component unit of theState for financial reporting purposes. Basic financial information presented herein is alsoincluded in the State’s Comprehensive Annual financial Report.

The Commission is governed by seven commissioners, four of whom, including the Chairman,are appointed by the Governor, with the remaining three appointed by the Southern NevadaWater Authority (SNWA). Commissioners are required to have a general knowledge of thedevelopment of the Colorado River and its tributaries within Nevada, as well as the rights ofNevada pertaining to the resources and benefits of the Colorado River. The members of theCommission are:

Initial
Name Appointment Current Term

George F. Ogilvie III,
Chairman 2007 7/01/13 —6/30/16

Puoy K. Premsrirut, 2013 7/01/14 — 6/30/17Vice Chairwoman

Honorable Sam Bateman 2015 7/01/15—6/30/16City of Henderson Councilman

KaraJ.Kelley 2015 1/21/15—6130117

Honorable Duncan R. McCoy, 2009 7/01/15 — 6/30/16Boulder City Councilman

Honorable Steve Sisolak, 2013 7/01/15—6/30/16 *

Clark County Commissioner

Cody Winterton 2015 7/13/15 — 6/30/18

The Commission is responsible for the acquisition, management, utilization and development ofdesignated water and electric power resources of the State. It is empowered to receive, protect,safeguard and hold in trust all rights, interests and benefits in and to the waters of the ColoradoRiver and such power generated thereon to which Nevada is entitled. The Commission has theauthority to make and enter into compacts or contracts and cooperate with other entities, states,and/or the federal government in fulfilling its statutory responsibilities. The Commission’s mainoffice is located in Las Vegas, Nevada.

* Designates those commissioners appointed by the SNWA who have terms that are subject to annual reappointment andcontinuation of their service as directors of SN WA.
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Activities of the Commission are funded from revenue received from power and water
contractors. An administrative charge is included in power sales to provide funding for power
related activities. Water administrative cost reimbursements are received from the SNWA.
Interest income earned from investments by the State Treasurer also contributes to revenues.
The Commission does not request or receive any State tax allocations or federal funds to support
its administrative and operating functions.

Power. Nevada’s allocation of hydropower from Hoover, Parker and Davis Dams, the Colorado
River Storage Project, and the Salt Lake City Area Integrated Project is purchased by the
Commission from the federal government and sold to several contracting entities in southern
Nevada, including three rural electrification associations, one municipal and one investor-owned
utility, and an industrial complex near Henderson, Nevada. The Commission also seeks and
contracts for available capacity and energy from alternative sources in order to meet the needs of
the entities it serves. The Commission is also responsible for developing power delivery
facilities and providing power, including hydropower to SNWA’s treatment facilities and the
Basic Industrial Complex in Henderson. The Commission’s customer base is limited by state
law to its current existing customers (including the power load to serve the water needs of
SNWA member agencies) and those who will receive a hydropower allocation under certain
allocation processes currently underway.

Water. The Commission represents Nevada’s interests on all state and interstate matters
dealing with the management, operation and administration of the water resources of the
Colorado River. The Commission works directly with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation,
representing the Secretary of the Interior as the water master of the Colorado River in the Lower
Basin; the other six Colorado River Basin states consisting of Arizona, California, Colorado,
New Mexico, Utah, and Wyoming; and SNWA and other water users in southern Nevada.
Negotiating new water supplies, identifying new operating strategies, which balance water use
with water supply, and developing new mechanisms for interstate water transfers and drought
contingency plans continues to be the principal focus of the Commission.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the environment within which the Commission provides service.

Clark County (the County). Although the resources of the Colorado River are allocated to
the State, the primary area served by the Commission is Clark County. The majority of the
Commission’s revenues and activities occur in the County.

The County encompasses 7,927 square miles, an area larger than the entire state of New Jersey.
It includes five incorporated cities: Las Vegas, Henderson, North Las Vegas, Boulder City, and
Mesquite; fourteen unincorporated towns; one school district; four library districts; one urban
and two rural fire districts; one sanitation district; one urban and three rural water districts; and
eleven judicial townships.
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After experiencing record growth rates for many years, Clark County’s population increase rate
halted, with declines in population reported in 2009 through 2011. Beginning in 2012 the
population began again to increase at very moderate rates. The March 1, 2015 Five-Year Report
of the State Demographer indicates that the County’s population for 2015 (2,088,149) represents
approximately 72.7% of the State’s estimated 2015 population of 2,871,934 (this percentage
remains virtually unchanged from the prior year’s percentage). Current projections forecast the
County population to be 2,107,031 in 2016 and 2,164,799 in 2019. Nevada’s estimated 2014
population was 2,843,301, with the 2015 estimated population being 2,871,934. This reflects an
increase of 28,633 or 1.0%. This compares to an overall 1.0% increase reported in 2012, 2013
and 2014 (a 1.4% decrease was reported for 2011). The current demographic estimate indicates
continued growth over the next several years at a rate of approximately 1% annually. The 2014
Twenty-Year Report projects the State population to reach approximately 3,329,074 in 2033.

The State experienced financial concerns as economic indicators in the State and County
declined over the last several years, however indicators since 2012 show some increases. During
this period state and local governments have taken steps to decrease expenditures to maintain
balanced budgets. On July 15, 2015 the Nevada Department of Employment, Training, and
Rehabilitation reported that Nevada’s unemployment rate fell to 6.9% in June, the first time in
seven years that the rate fell below 7%. The October 20, 2015 report indicated that the Clark
County September rate was 6.8%. The report indicates that the State’s seasonally adjusted year-
to-date average rate was back at 7%. Over the whole period the revenues of the Commission
have been stable, and are projected to remain so over the next year. This is primarily due to the
nature of Commission resources and the very low cost of those resources to its customers.

Long-Term Financial Planning. The financial management group monitors the fund
balance of the Commission’s general fund to ensure adequate reserves to fund ongoing
operations. State and Commission regulations provide the flexibility to adjust water
administrative revenues with each budget cycle, and to change power administrative charges
with advance notice to the customers. Acceptable fund balance and cash levels are maintained
with an annual internal review and, during the budget cycle (each even numbered year), are
reviewed with the customers in budget preparation meetings. Due to the pass through nature of
the Commission’s enterprise funds, ending funding balances are not monitored for adequate
levels. Cash flow is monitored for these funds, as each months billings reflect actual revenue
requirements for the month. Risk for these funds revolves around the inherent enterprise risk of
the Commission’s customers.

To ensure ongoing revenues, the Commission monitors the creditworthiness of its customer and
vendor base. As a significant portion of the customer base is governmental in nature, the risk of
financial failure is not significant. For the customers that are not governmental based, the
Commission requires deposits against power purchases in amounts determined annually by staff.
These deposits are generally in the form of letters of credit issued by financial institutions
acceptable to the Commission and the State Treasurer, and are at a minimum equal to three
months of average power purchases by the customer. The Commission operates in close concert
with all of its customers. The Commission’s Energy Services group staff members are housed
full-time at the SNWA offices and all customers have Internet access to Commission records and
operational information including real time power purchasing and invoicing amounts.
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Cash in all funds is deposited in the State Treasurer’s account, and the Treasurer acts as the
exclusive financial institution for the Commission. Interest income is received from the State
Treasurer on all Commission cash. The Commission has no direct control over the investing
activities of these resources. Interest income is not significant and is not used in budgeting and
cash needs analysis.

Market Risk Management. The Commission has adopted an extensive risk management
policy in line with current best electric power practices. A combined risk management
committee has been established between the Commission and the SNWA. This committee
establishes risk parameters, policies and procedures acceptable to both agencies. While the risk
management committee policy is binding on all activities related to the SNWA, the Commission
applies these policies to all power procurement activities in-so-far as they can be applied.

Awards. The Government finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in financial Reporting to the
Commission for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2014. This was the 38th consecutive year that the Commission has achieved this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report
must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

Acknowledgements. Preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
services of the entire staff of the Commission. We would like to express our appreciation to all
members of the staff We would also like to express our thanks to the Commission members for
their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial affairs in a responsible and
professional manner.
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PBTK
PIERCY BOWLER
TAYLOR & KERN
Certified Public Accountants

Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Honorable Chairman and Members of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Colorado River Commission
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Colorado River Commission
(the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

An audit performed in accordance with applicable professional standards is a process designed to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s basic financial statements are free from material
misstatement. This process involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Commission’s preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements to enable the design of audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as the overall presentation of the basic financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements. Management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basic fmancial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion. In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Commission as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison information for the
general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, and proportionate share of the collective net pension liability information

6100 Elton Avenue, Ste. 1000 • Las Vegas, Nevada 89107 • 702-384-1120 • fax 702-870-2474 • pbtk.com



and proportionate share of statutorily required pension contribution information, on pages 7-15 and 49-50 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a pan of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming our opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
other supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The other supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory’ section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards. In accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 8, 2015, on our consideration of the Commission’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

n 0 1)

Las Vegas, Nevada /
December 8, 2015
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Colorado River
Commission of Nevada (the Commission) presents management’s overall analysis of financial
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. This information will provide a more complete
picture of Commission activities when read in conjunction with the financial statements, notes to
the financial statements and letter of transmittal.

For 2015, information included in this discussion may not be comparable to previous years due to
the implementation of the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 6$,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. With the implementation of GASB 6$, all
information necessary to restate the 2014 financial statements in accordance with US Generally
Accepted Accotinting Principles was not available. This presentation, accordingly, only includes
the current fiscal year.

Financial Highlights

+ The assets of the Commission’s two governmental funds exceed the liabilities at the close
of the fiscal year by $5,338,834 (net position). However, the restricted fund balance
related to the Research and Development Fund is $9,537,522. Thus the net position for the
Commission’s General Fund is ($4,198,688). This is primarily the restilt of the application
of GASB 6$ which resulted in the recording of a net pension liability of $4,997,140,
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions of $1,430,464 and deferred outflows of
resources of $524,901. Note that GASB 68 requires government employers participating
in cost-sharing pension plans to report certain elements of the plan on their financial
statements for the first time this year. The Commission participates in the Public
Employer’s Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) and thus now reports the net pension

liability and deferred inflows/outflows on the statement of net position. GASB 68 did not
create this liability or change the terms of the PERS retirement system. The unfunded
PERS liability has existed for many years and been widely known btit is only now required
to be shown on the face of the financial statements.

+ The net position in the enterprise funds decreased this year by $2,175,703 from $3,303,045
(as adjtisted) to $1,127,342 as expected due to contractual collections for interest expense
but not for depreciation.

+ Cash balances in the governmental funds increased during the year, from a reported
balance of $11,109,794 in fiscal 2014, to $11,901,462 in 2015. This was due to increased
contractual collections for habitat reserves in the Research and Development fund. The
reserves are part of the Lower Colorado River Multi-Species Conservation Program which
is described in more detail in this analysis.

+ Revenues from the power administrative charge decreased stibstantially as compared to the
last fiscal year due to the suspension of charges of this revenue source. The power
administrative charge was suspended due to the substantial cash reserves related to the
charge and the desire of the Commission to reduce the reserves and provide the benefit to
the hydropower customers. The charge was suspended for ten months of the fiscal year. In
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addition, one of the quarterly billings for the water administration charge was suspended
based on cash reserves.

+ Both the power revenues and the cost of electric service provided to the Commission’s
customers decreased this year due to decreased levels of hydropower availability and
decreased demand from the customers as the Silver State Energy Association (SSEA — see
item below) now provides full service electric resources for cctstomers who previously
received power from the Commission. Revenues related to power purchases dropped from
$59,981,854 in fiscal 2014 to $55,645,061 in fiscal 2015 a decrease of $4,336,793 (7.2%
decrease). Expenses related to power purchases also dropped from $50,248,158 to
$43,389,559 a decrease of $6,858,599 (13.6% decrease). The role of the SSEA is further
described below.

+ Approximately seven years ago the Commission, the City of Boulder City, Overton Power
District No. 5, Lincoln Cotinty Power District No 1, and the Southern Nevada Water
Authority formed a joint action agency with the goal of aggregating power load
requirements and resources to take advantage of economies of scale and to participate
collectively in potential electric power projects. The organization is named the Silver State
Energy Association (SSEA) and information on the SSEA can be found at
www.silverstateenergy.org, The organization has been slowly growing and taking on new
roles in the power procurement arena. The SSEA has undertaken a number of projects and
recently begun serving the City of Boulder City as a full service provider. This full service
provider program reached the next historic milestone in April of 2013. As of the end of
that month, the SSEA became the full service provider for the Southern Nevada Water
Authority (SNWA). The SNWA also accomplished the moving of most of its electric
power loads from the local utility’s (Nevada Power dba NV Energy) Balancing Area to the
Western Area Power Administration’s Balancing Area. This milestone resulted in a major
change to the financial statements of the Commission now and in the futtire as the purchase
and sale of the electric power resources needed to supply the Southern Nevada Water
Authority will now be a function of the SSEA and not a part of the Commission. As part
of the full service program, Commission personnel will now serve as contract staff for the
SSEA. Thtis the Power Delivery Fund will provide for activities related to the transmission
assets of the Power Delivery Project, for some power purchase and sales activity not
related to the SNWA move, and for costs associated with staffing the SSEA but the bulk of
the power purchases and sales seen in the past will cease, The levels of activity reported in
this fiscal year should be indicative of levels going forward as the bulk of the resource
move has now been accomplished.

•• During the fiscal year the SNWA refunded the debt related to the Commission’s Power
Delivery System. The new debt issued by the SNWA is not a general obligation of the
State of Nevada and has no recourse to the Colorado River Commission. The existing
bond liability reported on the Commission’s financial statements has been reclassified as a
deferred liability (tinearned revenue) and will be amortized to the operating revenues over
the useful asset life of the Power Delivery System.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Commission is a special-purpose State of Nevada (the State) government entity. It is
empowered primarily to administer the Colorado River water resotirces allocated to the State by the
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Federal Government, and to provide electric power resources to specific legislatively approved
entities. Through the Commission, most of the water resources have been allocated to a regional
governmental entity, SNWA, and the power resources are provided mostly to governmental or
quasi-governmental entities with a limited number of industrial end users grandfathered in to the
Commission’s service authority. Thus, the enterprise funds have a statutorily limited customer
base. The Commission was not empowered to seek or serve any additional entities during the
fiscal year, btit pursuant to Assembly Bill 199 enacted during the 2013 legislative session, will be
able to serve new customers a limited amount of hydropower (approximately 11 megawatts) from
Hoover Dam for a 50 year period beginning in 2017. This power will be available as part of a 5%
reduction in power allocations to existing customers pttrsuant to Federal Legislation. The
authorization related to new ctistomers is limited to only the small hydropower energy pool created
at Hoover Dam. The water function is not intended to serve as an enterprise-type activity, and is
accounted for in the Commission’s general fund. The electric power function, while not intended
to generate a profit, is accounted for through the use of two enterprise funds. One of the funds (the
power delivery fund) records the transactions related to the Commission’s major customer, SNWA.
The resources of this fund provide electric power for SN WA’s water pumping needs. The other
enterprise fund (the Power Marketing Fund) records the transactions related to the purchase and
sale of hydropower resources allocated to the State. These resources are generated from Federal
Hydropower Projects (Hoover Darn, Parker Dam, and others) on the Colorado River. In addition to
these funds, the Commission administers one special revenue type governmental fund to account
for special projects.

The Commission’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-wide
financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the Commission’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Commission’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Commission is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Commission’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
tinderlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The functions reported on the Commission’s basic financial statements are principally supported by
user fees and charges. The water-related activities are supported by an administrative fee assessed
on SNWA, and the power-related activities are supported through administrative charges assessed
as part of the sale of electric resources. Environmental activities are supported through
administrative fees assessed on the SNWA and on hydropower customers.
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Fund financial statements. A fund is a self-balancing group of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Commission, like other governments, uses fund accotinting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Commission can be divided into
two categories: governmental and proprietary funds.

Governmental ftinds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, tinlike
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements foctis on near-term
inflows and otitfiows of spendable resotirces, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the foctis of governmental fund financial statements is narrower than that of the
government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental ftinds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

The Commission maintains only two governmental funds, the general fund and the research and
development fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general ftind and the
special revenue fund. Only the general fund is considered a major fund. Fcind data for the
remaining special revenue fund is provided in this report.
The Commission maintains two proprietary (enterprise) funds, both of which are also considered
major funds. These funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. These funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, btit in more detail. The Commission
adopts an annual budget for all funds. A budgetary comparison is provided in this report for the
two governmental funds.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide financial statements and fund financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial condition.
Increases or decreases in the net position may, over time be an indicator of improving or
deteriorating financial stability of the entity. However, this must be evaltiated with other factors,
some of which are detailed in the following tables.

10



Colorado River Commissions Net Position

Cove rnme ntal Activities Business-type Activities

2015 2014 Change 2015 2014 Change

Current assets
Non-current restricted cash and
cash eqtsvalents 9,381,172 9,694,940 (313,768)

Capital assets 86,291,980 1,068,094

Deferred Outflosvs

______________ ______________ _______________ ________________

2,377,149 (2,097,996)

Total assets

______________ ______________ _______________ ________________

118,328,127 (1,324,150)

Current liabilities 28,195,566 (12,598,299)

Long-term bonds 93,162,365 (53,942,287)

Net Pension liability 4,997,140

Other nonccirrcnt liabilities 137,128 61,059290

Deferred amounts, pension 1,430,464

___________________________________________________________________________

Total liuhiliUcs 7,508,154

Net assets
Invested in capital assets,

net ot’ related debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

_________________ ________________ _________________ __________________

Total net assets

_________________ ________________ _________________ __________________ _________________

Note that the total assets in the governmental funds decreased from the previotls year, with the
majority of the decrease reflected in the current liabilities. This is primarily the result of the
application of GASB 6$ which resulted in the recording of a net pension liability.

Total assets in the business-type funds decreased from the previotls year. The most significant
portion of the decrease reflects the decrease in unamortized bond refunding charges due to the
SNWA refunding the Commission’s bonds related to the Power Delivery Project.

The Commission has a significant amount of capital assets in its enterprise funds. The acqtlisition
or construction of these assets has been fully funded through the issuance of General Obligation
Revenue Supported Bonds. The contracts with Commission customers provide for collections
equal to the bond debt payments only. The Commission does not include depreciation expense in
its charges for power. This means that the net assets related to capital investment will never be
significant for the Commission’s enterprise funds, no matter the cost of the assets. Also, in the
early years of the asset life, when depreciation is higher than the underlying debt service, there will
be a negative investment in capital assets. However, all things being equal, at the end of the asset
life and debt term, the net investment should be zero.

$ 12,317,200 $ 11,472,222 $ 844,978 $ 19,983,578 $ 19,964,058 $ 9,520

4.887 7,673 (2,786) 87,360,074

524,901

_____________ ______________

279,153

12,846,988 11,479,895 $42,192 17,003,977

943,422 502,198 441,224 5,597,267

39,220,078

4,997,140

131,697 5,431 61,059290

I 430,464

633,895 6,874259 115,876,635 121,357.931 (5,48 1296)

4,887 7,673 (2,786) 46,451,402 1,728,620 44,722,782

9,537,522 8,125,768 1,411,754 712,991 712,019 972

(4203,575) 2,712,559 (6,916,134) (46,037,051) (5,470,443) (40,566,608)

$ 5,338,834 $ 10,846,000 $ (5,507,166) $ 1,127,342 $ (3,029,804) $ 4,157,146

11



Colorado River Commission’s Changes in Net Position

_____________________________________________________

Business-type_Activities

_____________ ______________ ______________

2015 2014 Change

202937 4672 188,265

1263002 3000.783 1,737,781)

67,653 55,587 12,066

________________ ________________ ________________

2,907.768 5271.263 (2,363,495)

_______________ _______________ _______________

25,179.606 27,386283 (2206,677)

______________ _______________

30.619,804 34,624.463 (4,004,599)

______________ _______________

55.799,470 62,010,746 (6211,276)

(2.175,703) (4,279,701) 2,103,998

(3,029,804) 1,428060 (4,457,804)

_____________ ______________

6,332,849 (178.163) 6,511.012

______________ _______________ _______________

S 1,127.342 S (3.029.804) 5 (2353,866)

The governmental activities of the Commission are small in comparison to the capital and power
purchasing activities. The Commission’s water-related efforts and other functions form the bulk of
the governmental programs. These activities are funded on a current basis through administrative
assessments, and the Commission carries minimal cash balances for these activities. Governmental
fund expenses increased from prior year based on increases in activity for the current year. There
were no requests to fund program needs within the LCRMSCP program, the State continued to
decrease expenses through salary redtictions and a mandatory’ furlough program.

The activities related to the electric power utility function are large and generate millions of dollars
in both revenues and expenses. However, as the Commission’s contracts for power allow only for
recovery of cost (including administrative expenses), these activities do not contribute significant
amounts to net assets. In fact, based on timing differences between collections from customers and
payment to vendors, the contributions to net assets from these activities may be negative in any
given year.

Financial Analysis of Government Funds.

The Commission uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All cash receipts and disbursements are processed and recorded by the State
Controller. Bttdgetaty and cash control is imposed by the Controller on the general and special
revenue funds. Cash control is required for the enterprise funds. No vouchers are processed for
payment unless adeqtiate btidget authority exists.

The Commission downloads data from the Controller related to revenue and expense transactions.
These downloads are imported into a computerized reporting system for financial report

Governmental Activities

2015 2014 Change

S 1.371.176 $ 2,200,221 S (826,045)

Revenues

Promarn resenues

Admmistratise charges

Posser sales revenue

Power marketing

Poser delners

General resenues

lnsestment income )kws)

Multi-species surcharge

Miscellaneous

Total resenues

Expenses

General goserninent

Power purchase expenses

Power marketing

Posver deliven’

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning

Net position. adjtistmenl

Net assets, ending

S 24.861,738 5

30.783,323

27.386,283 S (2,521,545)

32.595.57l 11.812.248)

(2,021291) (2254.874) 233.580

4,065 14,065)

53,623,767 - 57.73l,015 (4.107.2781

2,637.347 2,595,157 41,890

2.637.347 2,595,457 41,890

270.421 2,675,806 (2,405,385)

10.846.000 8,170,194 2.675,806

(5,777,587)

________________ ________________

S 5,336.834 S 10,846,000 $ (5,507,166)
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Net expenditures of the general fund totaled $2,506,177 which is $23,255 less than the $2,529,432
expended dtiring flscal 2015. The overall decrease can be attributed to decreases in personnel
related charges and allocations.

Change in levels of expenditures from the preceding year is as follows:

Inc tease!

Fund balances in the general fund and special revenue fund at year end compared to the previous
year were:

preparation purposes. As more fully explained in Note I to the financial statements. the accounting
policies of the Commission conform to, and its financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with, accounting principles generally accepted in the United States applicable to
government tinits.

The Commission is not subject to regulation by federal or state utility regulatoty bodies. General
governmental activity of the Commission is recorded in the general fund.

Revenues of the Commission’s general fund totaled $2,275,776 in fiscal 2014, $779,762 less than
the $1,490,014 realized in fiscal 2015. The decrease in reventmes was a result of the suspension of
the power administration charge for ten months in fiscal year 2015. The Commission’s revenue
sotmrces include water and power administrative billings. In addition to these two direct revenue
charges, the general fund receives salary and overhead reimbursements from other Commission
finds for work performed related to activities of those funds. Note that all personnel-related
charges are recorded in the general fund.

funding sources for the Commission’s general administrative functions are detailed in the
following table:

2015 2014
Amount Percent Amount Percent

Posseradininistratise charge S 220,817 5.55% S 140.050 23 70%

Wateradininistrative charge 1,153,359 29 00% 1,060,171 22.04%

hsvestment income 54,185 136% 9,968 0 42%

Miscellaneous income 67,653 1.70% 55,587 I 74%

Totalrevenues 1,496,04 37 61% 2.275,776 47 32%

Allocated salaries and overhead 2,481,664 62.39% 2,533,636 52 68%

Allilinding sources 5 3,977,678 100.00% S 4,809,412 00.00%

2015 2014 (Decrease)

Personnel S 3.418.753 S 3.499,577 S (80.824)

[ravel 18,214 57.671 (9.427)

Operating 1.483.911 1.493.099 (9.188)

Equipment 36,933 12,721 24,212

Total expenditures 4,987.841 5.063.068 (75.227)

Less allocated salaries and overhead (2.481.664) (2.533.636) 51.972

Net expenditures $ 2.506.177 $ 2.529.432 $ (23.255)

1,,
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Fund Fund Balance June 30 Increase!

2015 2014 (Decrease)

General Fund $ 2,040,963 $ 3,051,126 $ (1,010.163)

Research and Development Fund 9,537,522 8.125,768 1,411,754

There were no significant changes to the budget for fiscal 2015. The budget to actual comparisons
indicate that the personnel costs overall were below budget, this is due to unfilled positions, and the
continuation of mandatory furloughs. Outside contractual costs, while higher this year than last
year, were still below btldgeted amounts, resulting in lower operating costs than budgeted. This is
in line with previous fiscal years and reflects the budget process which includes budgeting for all
authorized positions and total allowed contract costs, which traditionally have never been ftilly
utilized.

The research and development fund records the transactions related to the LCRMSCP. The goals
of the program are to work toward the recovery of listed species through habitat and species
conservation, and attempt to reduce the likelihood of additional species listings tinder the
Endangered Species Act. The program will also accommodate current water diversions and power
prodtiction and optimize opportunities for future water and power development. This program is a
50-year program and this is the tenth year of operations under the program. In accordance with the
funding contracts, current payments related to the program are now depositing stibstantial amounts
into a reserve accotint for use related to species habitat in the future. This will continue for the next
few years until appropriate expendittlres are directed by the United States Bureau of Reclamation.
All charges to Commission ctistomers are pursuant to contract.

Capital Assets

The Commission’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as

of June 30, 2015, amounts to $54,932,768 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
incltides the power delivery system, automobiles and equipment (both administrative vehicles and
power delivery project utility vehicles) and office furniture. In fiscal 2015 additional assets were
identified that were constructed by the Commission’s customers in 2002 and donated to the agency.
These assets relate to the Basic Industries complex in Henderson and are now recorded in the
Power Marketing Fund. See footnote 14 for additional information. The depreciable lives related
to the Commission’s automobiles and eqtiipment are dictated by the policies and standards adopted
by the State. The Commission does not have the ability to change the policies and standards
related to the depreciable lives or methods on its own. Please refer to Note 5 to the financial
statements for more detailed information related to the capital assets of the Commission.

Colorado River Commission’s Capital Assets

(net ofdepreciation)

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities

2015 2014 Change 2015 2014 Change

Posser transmission system $ 54.870,096 $ 48.409,3 18 $ 6.460.778
Automobiles and ecluipment $ 4.887 $ 7.673 $ (2,786) 57.785 16.051 41.734

Total $ 4,887 $ 7,673 $ (2.786) $ 54,927.881 $ 48,425.369 $ 6.502,512

14



Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2015, outstanding long-term obligations of the Commission consisted of the
following:

Average
Interest Maturity Balance

Bond Description Rate (¾) Date Outstanding
I looser tiprating refunding, series 201 lB 5.0 2017 5.545,000
[looser uprating refunding series 2012E 5.4 2016 8.960,000
Hoover visitor center. .series 2014E 3.8 2041 29.475.000

All of the Commission’s outstanding bonds are both general obligation and revenue supported
(double-barreled) bonds. The Hoover visitor center bonds are taxable bonds. The bonds are
backed by the ftill faith and credit of the State; however, they have always been, and will continue
to be, self-supporting debt payable from revenues from the sale of power. Please refer to Note 7 to
the financial statements for more detailed information related to debt activity of the Commission.

Litigation and Arbitration

The Commission is not involved in any litigation at this time.

Additional Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission’s finances for all
interested parties. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests

for additional financial information should be addressed to the Division Chief, Finance and
Administration, Colorado River Commission, 555 East Washington Aventie, Suite 3 100, Las
Vegas, NV $9101. In addition, the Commission maintains a website that provides additional
information on all issues discussed in this analysis, on many other programs and projects of the
Commission, and information related to customers and staff contacts. The website address is
http://crc.nv.gov.
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COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30,2015

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash eqciivalents. unrestricted
Receivables:

Accounts
Accrued interest

Internal halances*

Prepaid items
Current portion ol prepaid power

lotal current assets

$ 11,901.462

181.480
15,864

218,394

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:

Depreciable properly and ecuipment. net
Prepaid poser, net of current portion

I otal noncurrent assets
lotal assets

DEFERREI) OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Lnamorti,ed bond rellinding charges
DeI’erred amounts related to pensions

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

4,887

1.887
12.322.087

2 50. 132
468,583

204,707

3.536.913
2.645,588
3,395,439

5,350,965
2 18.394
449,968

15,597,267

3.787.045
3,134,171
3 .3 95 .4 39

204.707
5 .3 5 0.965

449,968
16,322,295

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable. net of current portion
Unearned revenue, net of current portion
Accrtied compensated absences, net olcurrent portion
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

137,128
4.997.140
5.134.268

39.220,078 39,220,078
61 ,059,29() 61.059,290

137,128
4.997.110

100.279,368 105.41 3.636

I)EFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Delirred amounts related to pensions

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
1.430.464
7,508,154

1.430.464
115,876.635 123.166,395

9.53 7. 5 22
(4.203.5 75)
5,338,834

$ 12,846,988

* All internal balances are eliminated in the total column, Accordingly, total balances will not foot.

Govern men tat
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

$ 1,714,703 $ 13.616.165

11,500,198 11.681.678
14,402 30.266

276.895 276,895
6.477.380 6,477.360

19,983,578 32,082,38412.3 17,200

9.381,172 9,381,172

51,927.881 54,932.768
32,432,193 32,432.193
96.741.246 96,746,133

116.724,824 128.828,5 17

279.153

LIABILI’FIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Customer collateral and other deposits
Current portion of accrued compensated absences
Current portion of bonds pa able
Internal halances*

Accrued interest
Total current liabilities

524.901
12.846.988 117.003.977

2 79. 153
524.901

129.632.571

943,422

NEt POSITION
Net in\estment in capital assets
Restricted contractually or certain operations and maintenance
Restricted for research and deelopment
U nrestrictecl

Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position

4.887 46.451,402 16.456.289
712.991 712.991

9.53 7.522
(46,037.05 I) (50.240.626)

1,127.342 6.466,176
S 1 17,003,977 $ 129.632.571

See notes to financial statements. 19



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

‘Set (Epcnses) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

Charges for Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Activities Activities Total

I u net in nslP rograms

Governmental activities:
General government $ 2.637.347 $ 1,374,176 $ (1,263,17!) $ (1.263.171)
Research and development

______________

1.263.002 1,263.002 1.263.002
2,637.347 2,637.17$ (169) (169)

!3usiness—type activities:
Power marketing 25.179,606 24.861,738 S (317.868) (31 7,868)
Power delivery 32.812,396 30.783.323 (2.029.073) (2.029.073)

57.992,002 55.645,06! (2.346.94!) (2,346,94!)

Fotal S 60,629.349 $ 52.282,239 (169) (2,346,94!) (2.317.110)

General revenues:
Investment income 202.937 171.238 374,175
Miscellaneous 67.653

__________________

67.653
270.590 171.238 441.828

Change in net position 270.42! (2,175.703) (1.905.282)

Net position, beginning:
As previously reported 10.846,000 (3.029,804) 7.816.196
Adj ustment (5.777.5 87) 6,332.849 555.262
As adjusted 5.068,4 13 3,303,045 8,371.458

Net position, ending $ 5.338.834 S 1,127.342 $ 6,466.176

See notes to financial statements. 20



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Research and
Development Total

Special Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Funds

ASSI’TS
Cash and cash equhalents S 2,430.089 S 9.471.373 S 11.901.162
Receivables:

Accounts 127.956 53.524 181.480
Accrued interest 3.239 12.625 15.864

Due from other linda 218.394

__________________

218.394
Total assets $ 2.779.678 5 9.537.522 S 12.317.200

Ll.-HhtiTlFS ANI) FUNI) BALAN(tlS
I iahiIitie.:

Accounts pas able S 250.132 5 250.132
Unearned revenue 488.583 188.583

lotal liabilities 738.715 738.715

Uund balances:
tJnassigned 2,040,963 2.040,963
Restricted for research and development

__________________

S 9.537.522 9.537,522
Total fund balances 2,040.963 9.537.522 11.578.485

lotal liabilities and fund balances S 2.779,678 S 9,537.522

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not ctirrent linancial resources and.

therelbre. are not reported in the funds 4,887

long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current period are not
reported in the funds:

Accrued compensated absences 5 (341,835)
Net pension liability (4.997.140)
l)clCrred inflows of resources related to pensions (1.430,464)
DelCrrcd outliows of resources related to pensions 524,901

(6.244.538)

Net position of governmental activities $ 5.338.834

See notes to fThancial statements. 21



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

________

Research and
Development Total

Special Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Funds

Rl2VENtES

Charges (hr services S 1.374.176 5 1.374,176
Ins estment income 54.185 S 118.752 202.937
Multi-species surcharge 1.263.002 1.263.002
Miscellaneous 67.653

________________

67.653
Iota! revenues 1.496.014 1.111.751 2.907.768

EXPENI)ITU RE

C’ ci rrent:
General administration 4.972.703 4.972.703
Less salaries and overhead recovered by allocation (2.481.664) (2,481.664)

Net general administration expenditures 2.191.039 2.191,039
Water purchases 15.138 15,138

I otal expenditures 2,506.177 2.506,177

t:xccss (delIciency) of reventies over (tinder) expenditures and change in fund balances (1.010.163) 1.111.751 401.59!

Fund balances, beginning 3.051.126 8.125.768 11,176,894

lund balances, ending 5 2,040,963 S 9.537.522 S 11.578,485

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMEN’I’ OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FtINI) BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO ‘Il-It S’I’ATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Amounts reported lbr governmental activities in the statement of activities are difl’erent because:

Change in fund balances, governmental funds 5 401.59!

Got ernmental funds report capital outlays as expendittires. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. ‘Ihis is the amount by which
depreciation ssas greater than capital outlays in the current period. (2,786)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and. therefore. are not reported as expenditures in
gosernmental funds:

Change in accrued compensated absences S (3.266)
Change in net pension liabilii and related deferred

outflows and inflosss of resources (125.1 16)
(128.384)

Change in net position of governmental actis ities 5 270,421

See notes to financial statements. 22



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

t’ariance
Budget with

Original Final Actual Final Budget

lm er administrative charge
Water charges
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

$ 1.366,130 $ 1.366.130
1.526.758 1.526.758

6,228 9,936
60.000 60.301

2,959.1 16 2.963,125

5 220,817 $ (1,145.313)
1,153,359 (373.399)

54,185 44,249
67,653 7,352

1,496,014 (1.467,111)

EX PEN I) [lURES

Current:

(475,217) (1,010.163)

(281.130) (583.878) 3,051,126 3,635,004

$ (706.036) S (1.059.095) S 2.040,963 $ 3.100.058

General government:

Personnel ser ices
Fravel:

4.415.029 1.115.029 3.4 I 8.753 996.276

Out-oIst,ite 99.625 99.625 48,244 51.3$!
In-state 4.716 27.536 20.309 7.227

Operating:
Rent 134.743 134.743 131,755 2.988
Dties and registration les 64.223 64.223 86.945 (22.722)
(ontractual services 680.100 710,400 597.520 I I 2.880
Other 266,558 266.688 272.276 (5.588)

legal 360,018 360.018 359,968 50
Equipment, furniture and software 61,61 I 61.611 36,933 21.67$
Water ptirchases 15,134 16.534 15,138 1,396

Total expenditures 6,102,087 6.156.407 4.987,841 1,168,566
Less salaries and overhead recovered by allocation (2,718.065) (2,718.065) (2,481,664) (236,401)

Net expendittires 3,384.022 3,438.342 2,506,177 932,165

(534,946)

Dc iciency of revenues under expenditures
and change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

fund balance. ending

(424,906)

See notes to financial statements. 23



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Po er

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Power

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted
Receivables:

Accounts
Accrued interest

Prepaid items
Current portion of prepaid power

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equi alents
Capital assets

Poscr transmission s stem, net
A utomob les and equipment. net

Prcpaid pos er. net of current portion
Total noncurrent assets

l)EFERRED OtP’I’FLOWS OF RESOURCES

Niarketing Delivery ‘l’otals

Unamortized bond rellinding charges

Total assets and deferred outflows of resotirces

279,153

________________

279,153

IA 111 LIlIES:

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Current portion of unearned revenue
Customer collateral and other deposits
C’urrent portion of bonds payable
Due to other funds
Accrued interest

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Unearned revenue, net of ctirrent portion

Total noncurrent liabilities

1,347,014 2,189,899 3,536,913
524,700 2,120,888 2,645.58$

3,256,753 138,686 3.395,439
5,350,965 5,350,965

5,435 212,959 218,394
449,968

________________

449,968
10,934,835 4,662,432 15,597,267

39,220,078 39,220,078
7,276,186 53,783,104 61,059,290

46,496,264 53,783,104 100,279,368

‘l’otal liabilities

NET POSI1’ION:

57,431,099 58,445,536 115,876,635

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted contractually for certain operations and maintenance
tnrestricied

lotal net position

‘I otal I iah iii tiCs and net P° i iioil

46,451,402 46,451,402
712,991 712,991

8.780.763 (54,817.814) (46,037.051)

9.493.754 (8,366,412) 1127,342

S 66.924.853 S 50.079,124 5 117,003.977

S 673.629 S 1,041,074 S 1,714,703

9. 15 1.058
12,791

2,349,140
1.611

11,500.198
14,402

241,212 35,683 276,895
6,477.380

_________________

6.477,380
16,556.070 3,427.50$ 9.983.578

9.180.958

8,176,479

200,214

46,393.618
5 7. 784

Total assets 66,645,700 50,079.124

9,381,172

54,870,097
57,781

32.432.193

_________________

32,432,193
50,089.630 46.651.616 96,741,246

116,721,824

66,924,853 50,079.124 117,003,977

See notes to financial statements. 24



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE_YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Power Power
Marketing Delivery Totals

OPERATING REVENUES:
Power sales S 24.861.738 S 30.783.323 S 55.645.061

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Power purchases I 8.329.263 25.060.296 43.389,559
Prepaid power adsanees 6,I56.624 6.156.624
Depreciation 317.868 2.029.073 2.346.911
General administration 375.851 3.530.495 3.906.346

lotal operating expenses 25,179,606 30.619.864 55.799.470

Operating income (loss) (317.868) 163,459 (154.409)

NONOIERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income 135,122 36.116 171.238
Interest expense

__________________

(2.192.532) (2.192,532)

Change in net position (182.746) (1.992.957) (2.175,703)

Net position. beginning:
As previously reported 8,725.316 (11,755.120) (3,029,804)
Adjustment 951,184 5,381.665 6.332.849
As adjcisled 9,676.500 (6,373,455) 3,303.045

Net position. ending $ 9,493,754 S (8,366,412) $ 1.127,342

See notes to financial statements. 25



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

STATEMENT Of CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Power Power
Marketing l)elivery Totals

CASh FLOtVS FROM OPERAYING A(’TI Viii ES:
(ush received from customers
(ash paid br goods and services

Net cash pros ided b operating activities

$ 25.574,20! S 30.295.324 5 55,869,525
(19.024.333) (29.451.149) (48.475.782)

6.549.868 843,875 7.393.743

CASh FLOWS FROM NON(’APITAI.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid (charged to prepaid power)
Proceeds from bonds (charged to prcpaid power)
Principal payments reimbursed on bonds pa able (charged to prepaid power)

Net cash used in noncapital financing actis ties

(1.493.538)
(162.322)

(4.150.000)
(5.805.860)

(1.493.538)
(162.322)

(4.150.000)
(5,805.860)

(‘ASH FLOWS FROM (‘APIlAL FINANCING ACtIVITIES:
Interest paid
Acquisition of’ property. plant and equipment

Net cash used in capital financing activities

(.SII Ft.OWS FROM INVES’I’ING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Restricted and unrestricted)

Cash and cash equisalents. beginning

Cash and cash eqtiisalents. ending

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NEt CASh
PROVII)EI) BV OIERAI’INC ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)
Depreciation
Amortization of prepaid power
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable
Prepaid items

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts pa able
C nearned res enue
Cutorner collateral and other deposits
Due to other funds
Payable to customers

(2.091.746) (2,091,746)
(55,106) (55.106)

(2,146.852) (2,146.852)

129.532 36.499 166.031

$ 9.854.587 $ 1,241.268 S 11,095,675

$ (317,868) $ 163,459 $ (154.409)
317,868 2,029,073 2.346.941

6,156,624 6,156,624

148.307 237,862 386.169
(123.213) (35.683) (158.896)

(196.737) (928,081) (1.124.818)
(189.870) (342.426) (532.296)
754.026 64.136 818.162

731 38.970 39.701

__________________

(383.435) (383.435)

$ 6.549.868 S 843.875 $ 7.393.743

873.540 (1.266.478) (392.938)

8.98 1.047 2.507,766 11.488.813

Net cash provided by operating activities

See notes to financial statements. 26
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COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JENE 30, 2015

1. Summary of significant accounting policies:

Reporting entity

The Colorado River Commission (the Commission) is responsible for managing the State of
Nevada’s interests in the water and power resources available from the Colorado River.

Seven commissioners have broad statutory authority to govern the Commission, which constitutes
the reporting entity. The Commission, as a component tinit of the State of Nevada (Nevada or the
State), is also an integral part of that reporting entity. There are no other entities for which the
Commission is financially accountable, thtis requiring them to be reported as component units of
the Commission.

All of the Commission’s cash receipts and disbursements are processed and recorded by the State’s
Controller. Budgetary’ and cash controls are imposed by the State Controller on the Commission’s
general and special revenue funds, while other State-imposed cash control requirements apply to
the Commission’s enterprise funds. The Commission maintains its own revenue, expense and
general journals and a general ledger.

Basis of presentation, measurement focus, and basis of accounting

Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) applicable to government units as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), principally GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management ‘s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments, as amended, along with related pronouncements. The GASB is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The Commission is not stibject to regulation by federal or state utility regulatory bodies such as the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or the Nevada Ptiblic Utilities Commission.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures, some of which may require
revisions in future periods. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates and
assumptions.

Government-widefincmcialstateinents: The statement of net position and the statement of activities
display information on all of the activities of the Commission. Eliminations have been made where
appropriate to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish
between the Commission’s governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities
generally are financed through inter-governmental revenues and other exchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed primarily by fees charged to external parties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore,
are clearly identifiable to that particular program or function. Certain indirect costs are included in
the program expense reported for individtial functions and activities. Program revenues consist of
charges paid by the recipients of services offered by the programs. Revenues that are not classified
as program revenues are presented as general revenues.

Fund financicil statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
Commission’s fcinds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary
—are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise
funds, each displayed in a separate column. Any remaining governmental and enterprise funds are
aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially eqtial valties. Non-operating revenues of proprietary funds
include investment earnings and revenues resulting from ancillary activities.

The Commission reports the genera/fund as its only major governmental fund. The general fttnd
is the Commission’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accotinted for in another fund.

The Commission reports the following major enterprise funds:

Power marketing enterprise lund. This fund operates as a public utility and accounts for the
activities of providing electrical power generated at a federal facility to its customers.

Power delivery enterprise fund. This fund is used to account for the construction and operation of
power transmission equipment for the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA).

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. The government-wide and
proprietary ftind financial statements are prepared using the economic resources meastirement
foctis and the accrual basis of accounting. Reventies are recorded when earned, and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. For the
year ended June 30. 2015, there were no non-exchange transactions (those for which the
Commission gives, or receives, valtie without directly receiving, or giving, equal value in
exchange) reported in the accompanying financial statements.

Governmental fund financial statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources meastirement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues,
principally charges for services and investment income, are stisceptible to accrual and, therefore,
recognized when measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available if they are
collected within sixty days after year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when the related
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures only when payment
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

is due. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.

It is the Commission’s policy to use restricted resources first when both restricted and unrestricted
(unassigned) resources are available for use, and then unrestricted (unassigned) resotirces as
needed

Assets, liabilities, and equity

Cash equivalents

The Commission’s restricted and unrestricted cash is deposited with the State Treasurer (the
Treastirer) in a fund similar to an external investment pool (Notes 3 and 4). Becatise the amounts
deposited with the Treasurer are stifTiciently liquid to permit withdrawals in the fonE of cash at any
time without prior notice or penalty, they are deemed to be cash equivalents.

State statutes authorize the Treasurer to invest the Commission’s deposits in certain obligations of
the United States of America, or its agencies or instrtimentalities, and of state and local
governments, as well as other financial instruments specified in Section 355.170 of Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS). The Treastirer is also permitted by statute to lend its securities to broker-dealers
and other entities with a simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in
the future. The Commission had no outstanding sectirities lending transactions as of Jtine 30, 2015.

Deposit values reflect tinrealized gains and losses on invested funds as reported by the Treasurer.

Receivables and payables

All outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other ftinds” (Note 6).

Since sales are made only to customers who are known to have acceptable credit and no bad debts
have ever been sustained, an allowance for uncollectible accounts is not considered to be necessary.

Prepaid power

The Commission has participated with the State in funding (Note 7) the improvement and
renovation (“uprating”) of the electrical power generation plant and visitors’ center at Hoover Dam,
which supplies the majority of the power sold through the power marketing fund. These costs are
to be reimbursed in the form of power consumption and charged to expense as the related debt
amortizes over an extended period of time. The estimated value of power to be received during the
next fiscal year is classified as a current asset, prepaid power.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

The various resources that are limited as to use by bond covenants for debt service, operation and
maintenance (O&M), and capital improvement and construction (acquisition) are classified as
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restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 4). Net position is restricted to the extent restricted assets
exceed related liabilities and contractually with regard to certain operations and maintenance costs.

Capital assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets (Note 5) are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on the date of donation. The
capitalization threshold is $5,000.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest inctjrred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized valtie of the assets constructed. However, during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015, none of the total interest expense incurred by the Commission ($2,192,531)
was capitalized.

Capital assets of the Commission are depreciated tising the straight-line method over their tiseful
lives currently estimated as follows:

Governmental activities Years
Office equipment 5
Office furniture and fixtures
Automobiles 4 -6

Business-type activities
Po er transmission s stems 10 - 50
Office equipment
Automobiles 4 -6

Estimated useful lives are determined by the State and the Commission has no authority to alter the
estimated useful lives prescribed by the State.

Compensated absences

It is the Commission’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. All vacation and sick pay is accrtled when inctlrred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental
funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Commission uses the same basis used in the Public Employees’ Retirement System of
Nevada’s (PERS) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. for reporting its proportionate share of
the PERS collective net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, including information related to PERS fiduciary net position.
Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized by PERS when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. PERS investments are reported at fair value.
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Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies
to future periods; and therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) tmtil then. The government-wide statement of net position reports 1) the changes in
proportion and differences between actual contributions and proportionate share of contributions
related to pensions, which will be amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all
employees that are provided with pension benefits, and 2) contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date, which will be recognized in the subseqtient year.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acqtlisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
government-wide statement of net position reports I) the differences between expected and actual
experience and changes of assumptions, which will be amortized over the average expected
remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pension benefits, and 2) the net
difference between projected and actual earnings on investments, which will be amortized over five
years.

Long-term obligations

In the accompanying government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds tising the straight-line method.

2. Stewardship, comp]iance, and accountability

Budgetary information

Biennial budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the accounting policies applied for financial
reporting purposes by the Commission under GAAP except that encumbrances for goods and
services not received by fiscal year end are considered expenditures of the current period solely for
budgetary purposes. There were no encumbrances outstanding at the beginning or end of the year.
Although budgets are adopted on a biennial basis, each year is treated separately and unexpended
budget authorizations lapse at each year end.

Prior to September 1 of each even-numbered year, the State’s Director of Administration submits
proposed operating btidgets to the Nevada Btidget Division covering the biennium beginning the
following July 1. After review of the budgets by the Nevada Btidget Division between September
I and November 15. hearings involving the Commission, the Director of Administration and the
Governor are held between November 1 5 and December 22, each budget year. The biennium
budgets arc transmitted to the State Legislature no later than the O’ day of the legislative session
held in odd-numbered years and, before adjourning, the Legislature enacts the budgets.
Net expenditures of the general fund (gross expenditures less amotmts allocated to other funds) are
controlled by budget categories (personnel services, travel in-state, travel out-of-state, operating
expenses, and capital outlay for the general fund; and general and administrative and
intergovernmental for the special revenue fund).
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Management of the Commission cannot amend any btidget categories. However, the Director of
Administration is authorized to approve requests for changes in the budget involving transfers
between expenditure categories not exceeding 10% of originally budgeted expenditures, or $30,000
in the aggregate, of the respective budget categories. Any changes exceeding 10% or $30,000
require approval of the State Legislature’s Interim Finance Comm iftee.

Bond covenants

Following is a brief summary of the covenants included in the bond resolutions (Notes 4 and 7) of
the enterprise funds:

The Commission is required to charge purchasers of services and all users of the State facilities
sufficient amounts to cover all operation and maintenance expenses (except depreciation), all debt
service requirements, and any amounts required to be deposited in reserve accounts.

Monthly transfers for debt service — A debt service account is reqtiired to enstire payment of interest
and principal when due. Transfers are made each month from revenues to provide 1/6 of the next
semiannual interest payment and 1/12 of the annual bond maturity payment.

Classes of users — The power marketing fund serves two classes of users, retail utility customers
and indtistrial customers. The power delivery ftind serves the SNWA and its customers.

Other — Other requirements of the bond covenants include maintaining bond funds in separate
depository accounts with the State Treasurer and an audit of the Commission’s financial statements
by an independent certified ptiblic accountant.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Commission complied with all requirements of the
bond covenants.

3. Cash deposits:

At Jtine 30, 2015, the Commission’s carrying amotint (“book value”) of restricted and unrestricted
cash and cash equivalents was $22,997,337 and the State Treasurer’s balance was $23,023,441.
These deposits with the Treasurer are not categorized as to credit risk, but are ftilly insured by the
FDIC or collateralized by the State’s financial instittitions.

4. Restricted cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents restricted at June 30, 2015, by bond covenants or contractual agreements
are summarized as follows:

Restricted For:
Debt service 5 4.038.718
Resen’e for rc’entie insufficiency 2.126,047
Cash held by contractual agreement 3.216.407

Total restricted S 9,381.172
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5. Capital assets:

Capital asset activity for the year ended Jttne 30, 2015, was as follows:

Beginning
Balances Ending
(restated) Increase Decrease Balances

Governmental activities
Capital assets being depreciated

Office equipment $ 85.645 $ 85.645
001cc kirniture and lixtures 28,539 28,539
Automobiles 128,517 S 19,991 108,526

total capital assets being 19,991 222,710
depreciated 242,701

Less accumulated depreciation
Oflice equipment 85,645 85,645
Office furniture and fixtures 28,539 28,539
Automobiles 120,844 $ 2,786 19,991 103,639

total accumulated depreciation 235,028 2,786 19,991 217,823

$ S $ 4.887
Capital assets, net S 7,673 (2,786)

Beginning
Balances Ending
(restated) Increase Decrease Balances

Business-type activities
Capital assets being depreciated

Power transmission ssstem S 88,278,265 S 88,278,265
Office eqtuprnent 69.901 S 22.289 92,190
Automobiles 186,834 32.817 219.651

total capital assets being 55,106 88.590,106
depreciated 88.535.000

l,ess acctimtilated depreciation
Power transmission system 31.074,601 2,333,568 33,408,169
001cc equipment 69,901 3,313 73,214
Automobiles 170,782 10,060 180,842

Total accumulated depreciation 31,315,284 2,346,941 33,662,225

$ $ 54,927,881
Capital assets, net $ 57,219,716 (2,291,835)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities
General government $ 2.786

Business-type activities
Posser marketing 317.868
Pover delivery 2.029,073

S 2,349.727
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6. Balances due to/from other funds

The composition of interfund balances, representing the net of short-term working capital advances
and repayments, as of Jtine 30, 2015, was as follows:

Fii nds
Due from Due to

General $ 218,394
Power marketing
Power deliver

$ 5.435
212,959
218394S 218,394 $

7. Long-term debt:

General Obligation Bonds

Section 3 of Article 9 of the Nevada State Constitution limits public debt to 2% of the State’s
assessed valuation. The legislattire may authorize debt that is not subject to the foregoing limitation
to protect and preserve, or obtain the benefits of, any of its property or natural resources. The
bonded debt incurred to fund the State’s share of the cost of uprating electrical generating facilities
at Hoover Dam does not affect the legal debt margin, because it was incutted to obtain the benefits
of the facility.

In April 2005, the Commission sold the $65,300,000 Series 20051 bonds. Proceeds from these
bonds were used to advance refund substantial portions of the Series 1997A and 1999A bonds. The
bonds mature annually on September 15, 2008 through 2030, with interest payable semi-annually
on March 15 and September 15 at the annual rates of 4.75% to 5%.

The Series 20051 bonds principal and interest payments are being made by a significant customer
of the Commission as partial payment for power delivery services. In September 2011, this
customer advance reftmnded $10,305,000 of these bonds through an agent. The bonds issued by the
agent for this refunding are not obligations of the Commission and, consequently, the
Commission’s debt has been reduced by this amount with a corresponding addition to the liability
to the ctistomer for power delivery services.

In Jumie 2015, this customer refunded the remaining balance of the 2005i bonds, in the amount of
$47.755.000. with the isstiance of new bonds which are not obligations of the Commission and,
consequently, the Commission”s debt was eliminated and a corresponding addition to unearned
revenue was recorded. No economic gain or loss was recorded in conjunction with this refunding.

In November 2011, the Commission sold the $5,545,000 Series 201 lB General Obligation
Refunding bonds. Proceeds from these bonds were tised to advance refund the Series 2001 bonds.
The bonds mature on October 1,2017, with interest payable semi-annually on April 1 and October
I at the anntial rate of 5%.

In July 2012, the Commission sold the $17,085,000 Series 2012E General Obligation Reftmnding
bonds. Proceeds from these bonds were used to advance refund the Series 2002 bonds. The
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bonds mature on October 1, 2016, with interest payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 at
the annual rates of 4% to 5%.

On March 12, 2014, because of delays in determining a final allocation of shared costs, interim
bonds of $28,425,000 were isstied to fund the Commission’s expected share of the cost of
construction of the visitor’s center at Hoover Dam, with expenditures charged to prepaid power
(Note 1). In June 2014, the Commission sold the $29,475,000 Series 2014E General Obligation
Refunding bonds, proceeds from which were used to pay off the interim bonds. These bonds mature
anntially on October 1, 2015 throtigh 2043, with interest payable semi-annually on October 1 and
April 1 at the annual rates of .50% to 4.25%.

General obligation bonds outstanding at year end are summarized as follows:

Maturity Interest Rates Outstanding at
Dates June 30, 2015

Business-type activities
General obligation refunding series 2011 B 2011 -2017 5.00% S 5.545.000
General obligation refunding series 2012E 2012 - 2016 4.00 to 5.00% 8,960.000
General obligation refunding series 2014E 2015 - 2013 0.50 to 1.25% 29,475,000

S 43,980,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt consisting of general obligation
bonds are as follows:

Year Ending Principal Interest
June 30,

2016 5 4,785,000 $ 1,690,220
2017 5,015,000 1,464,645
2018 5,970,000 1,208,183
2019 730,000 1,062,535
2020 740,000 1,049,840

2021 -2025 3,975,000 4,957,833
2026 - 203t) 4,655,000 4,257,998
2031 -2035 5,610,000 3,265,808
2036 - 2040 6,580,000 1,960,525
2041 - 2044 5.920,000 515,950

Total $ 43,980,000 $ 21,433,537

Changes in long-term obligations

Changes in long-term obligations during the year-ended June 30, 2015, are summarized below:

Balance Balance
.July 1,2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 Current

Governmental activities
Accrcied compensated absences $ 338,567 $ 190,786 $ 187,518 $ 341,835 $ 204,708

Business-type activities
General obligation bonds 95.885,000 51,905,000 43.980,000 4.785,000
Unamortited bond premium 2.255.216 1.496,317 758,899 571.958
tJnarnoized bond discount (173.851)

_______________

(5.995) (167.856) (5,995)
lotal S 98.304.932 S 190,786 5 53.582,840 S 41,912,878 S 5.555.671
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Accrued compensated absences and the net pension liability are paid from the general fund.

The Commission has provided to a third-party borrower condtiit debt, related to the water treatment
and transmission assets transferred to the third party on January 1, 1996, with an outstanding
balance of $64,640,000 as of June 30, 2015. Pursuant to an agreement with the third-party
borrower, the Commission has no obligation for the debt.

8. Segment information

The Commission has issued general obligation bonds (in some cases revenue supported) to finance
uprating of the electrical generating facilities at Hoover Dam and to finance the costs of acquiring,
constructing and equipping electrical power transmission and distribution facilities. These bonds
have historically been paid from the revenues of the Commission’s enterprise funds, the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows of these enterprise ftmnds are presented separately in
the accompanying proprietary fund financial statements and no additional segment information
disclosure is considered necessary.

9. Risk management

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions: and natural disasters. The Commission participates in
the State risk pool and is liable for payment of nominal deductible amounts. The State then becomes
responsible for all losses in excess of the nominal insurance dedtictible.

The United States has been experiencing a widespread recession accompanied by declines in
residential real estate sales, mortgage lending and related construction activity, higher energy costs
and other inflationary trends and weakness in the commercial and investment banking systems, and
is engaged in a war, all of which are likely to continue to have far-reaching effects on the economic
activity in the country for an indeterminate period. The near- and long-term impact of these factors
on the Nevada economy and the Commission’s operations cannot be predicted at this time but may
be substantial.

Through the State Treasurer, the Commission may carry cash and cash equivalents on deposit with
financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. The extent ofa future loss to be sustained
as a result of uninsured deposits in the event of a future failure of a financial institution, if any, is
not stibject to estimation at this time.

10. Commitments and contingencies

Litigation

The Commission may from time to time be a party in various litigation matters. It is management’s
opinion, based upon advice from legal counsel, that the risk of financial losses to the Commission
from such litigation, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the
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Comrnissions future financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Accordingly, no
provision has been made for any such losses.

The Commission does not accrue for estimated future legal and defense costs, if any, to be incurred
in connection with outstanding or threatened litigation and other disputed matters but rather,
records such as period costs when the services are rendered.

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement

The federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate requirement with respect to some bonds
issued by the Commission. Under this Act, an amount may be required to be rebated to the United
States Treasury (called arbitrage”), for interest on the bonds to qualify for exclusion from gross
income for federal income tax ptlrposes. Rebatable arbitrage is comptited as of each installment
computation date. The arbitrage rebate calctilation as of the most recent such date indicates that no
amount is due. Future calculations might result in adjustments to this determination.

11. Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Commission’s employees are covered by the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada
(PERS), which was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948. and is
governed by the Public Employees Retirement Board (the PERS Board) whose seven members are
appointed by the governor. The Commission does not exercise any control over PERS.

PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system
which includes both regular and police/fire members. PERS is administered to provide a reasonable
base income to qtialified employees who have been employed by a public employer and whose
earnings capacities have been removed or substantially impaired by age or disability.

Benefits, as required by NRS, are determined by the number of years of accredited service at time
of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive months with
special provisions for members entering the system on or after January 1, 201 0. Benefit payments
to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan include pension benefits,
disability benefits, and stirvivor benefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each
accredited year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this
multiplier is 2.67% of average compensation. For members entering the system on or after January’
1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier. PERS offers several altematives to the unmodified service
retirement allowance which, in general, allow the retired employee to accept a reduced service
retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and various optional monthly
payments to a named beneficiary’ after his or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by atithority of NRS 286.575 - .579, which for members
entering the system before January 1, 201 0, is equal to the lesser of:
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1. 2% per year following the third anniversary of the commencement of benefits, 3% per year
following the sixth anniversary, 3.5% per year following the ninth anniversary. 4% per year
following the twelfth anniversary and 5% per year following the fourteenth anniversary, or

2. The average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (or other PERS Board
approved index) for the three preceding years.

In any event, a member’s benefit must be increased by the percentages in paragraph 1, above, if the
benefit of a member has not been increased at a rate greater than or eqtial to the average of the
Consumer Price Index (All Items) (or other PERS Board approved index) for the period between
retirement and the date of increase.

for members entering the system on or after January 1, 201 0, the post-retirement increases are the
same as above, except that the increases do not exceed 4% per year.

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with 10
years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering the System
on or after January 1. 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, or age
62 with 10 years of service, or any age with thirty years of serv’ice. Police/fire members are eligible
for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 with ten years of service, at age 50
with twenty years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years of service. Police/fire members
entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years
of service, or age 60 with ten years of service, or age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age
with thirty years of service. Only service performed in a position as a police officer or firefighter
may be counted toward the eligibility for retirement as police/fire accredited service.

The normal ceiling limitation on the monthly benefit allowances is 75% of average compensation.
However, a member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a
benefit of up to 90% of average compensation. Both regular and police/fire members become fully
vested as to benefits tipon completion of five years of service.

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member
contribution rates rests with NRS. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the employer-pay
contribution (EPC) plan prior to Jtily 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two alternative
contribution plans. Contributions are shared equally by employer and employee in which
employees can take a reduced salary and have contributions made by the employer or can make
contributions by a payroll deduction matched by the employer.

PERS’s basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a
percentage of salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. PERS receives an acttiarial valuation on an annual basis for
determining the prospective funding contribution rates required to fund the system on an actuarial
reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the required rates established by
NRS. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450. The
actuarial funding method tised is the entry age normal cost method. It is intended to meet the

40



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

funding objective and restilt in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a
percentage of salary.

For the fiscal years ended June 30. 2014 and 2015, the required employer/employee matching rate
was l3.25% for regular and 20.75% for police/fire members. The EPC rate was 25.75% for regular
and 40.50% for police/fire members.

Effective July 1.2015, the required contribution rates for regular members are 14.5% and 28% for
employer/employee matching and EPC, respectively. The required contribution rates for police/fire
members remain the same.

PERS issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial
statements and required supplemental information. This report is available on the PER’s website,
www.nvpers.org under ptiblications.

PERS collective net pension liability was measured as of Jtine 30, 2014, and the total pension
liability tised to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valtiation as of
that date. For this ptirpose. certain actuarial valuation asstimptions are stiptilated by GASB and
may vary from those used to determine the prospective funding contribution rates.

The total PERS pension liability was determined using the following acttiarial assumptions (based
on the results of an experience review completed in 2013), applied to all periods included in the
ni eas u re 111 en t:

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2014
Inflation rate 3.50%
Payroll growth 5.00%, including inflation
Ins estment rate of return 8.00%, including inflation
Discount rate 8.00%
Productivity pay increase 0.75%
Consumer price index 3,50%
Actttartal cost method Entry’ age normal and level percentage of payroll
Pro)ected salary’ increases Regular: 4.60% to 9.75%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 5.25% to 14.50%, depending on service
Rates include inflation and productivity increases

At June 30, 2014, assumed mortality rates and projected life expectancies for selected ages were as
follows:

Regular Members
Mortality Rates Expected Years of Lil’e Remaining

Ae Males Females Males Females

10 0,10% 0.05% 41.1 444
50 0.17% 0.12% 31.6 34 7
60 0.55% 0.42% 22.4 25.4
70 1.82% 1.39% 11.3 17.0
80 5,65% 3.79% 7.7 10.1
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Police/Fire Members
Mortality Rates Expected Years of Life Remaining

Ace Males Females Males Females

40 0.10% 0.06% 40.2 42.5
50 0.19% 0.15% 30.7 32.8
60 0.63% 0.54% 21.5 23.6
70 2.02% 1.72% 13.5 15.5
So 6.41% 4.63% 7.1 9.0

These mortality rates and projected life expectancies are based on the following:

• For non-disabled male regular members — RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table
projected to 2013 with Scale AA

• Eor non-disabled female regular members — RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table,
projected to 2013 with Scale AA, set back one year

• For all non-disabled police/fire members — RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table
projected to 201 3 with Scale AA, set fonvard one year

• For all disabled regtilar members and all disabled police/fire members — RP-2000 Disabled
Retiree Mortality Table projected to 2013 with Scale AA, set forward three years

PERS’s policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by
the PERS Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk
and return needs of PERS. The following target asset allocation policy was adopted as of Jtine 30,
2014:

Long-term Geometric
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return *

Domestic equity 42% 5.50%
International equity 18% 5.75%
Domestic Oxed income 30% 0.25%
Private rnarlets 10% 6.80%

fhese geometric reWm rates are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by adding the long-term expected intlation rate of 3.5%,

The discount rate tised to meastire the total pension liability was 8.00% as of June 30, 2014 and
2013. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and
employer contributions will be made at the rate specified by NRS. Based on that assumption,
PERS’s fiduciary net position at June 30. 2014, was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments (8%) was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2014.
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The Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability at year end, calculated using the
discount rate of 8.00%, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (7.00%) or 1% higher
(9.OO%) than the current discount rate was as follows:

I % Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

Net pension IiabiIit S 7771,099 S 4,997.140 $ 2,691,274

Detailed information about PERS fiduciary net position is available in the PERS Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, available on the PERS website. www.nvpers.org under publications.
PERS fiduciaiy net position and additions to/deductions from it have been determined on the same
basis used in the PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. PERS financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to governmental accounting for fiduciary funds. Benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contribtitions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

The Commission’s proportionate share (amotmt) of the collective net pension liability was
$4,997,140, which represents 0.04795% of the collective net pension liability. Contributions for
employer pay dates within the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, were used as the basis for
determining each employer’s proportionate share. Each employer’s proportion of the net pension
liability is based on their combined employer and member contributions relative to the total
combined employer and meniber contribtitions for all employers for the period ended June 30,
2014.

For the year ended June 30, 201 5, the Commission’s pension expense was $629,604 and its reported
deferred outflows and inflows of resotirces related to pensions were as follows:

Deferred Dekrred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 239,141
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments 1,049,604
Changes in proportion and ditTerences between actual contributions
and proportionate share of contributions 141,719
Contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 507,091

At June 30, 2014, the average expected remaining service life is 6.70 years.

Deferred outflows of resotirces related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date totaling $507,091 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ending June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Years endine June 30.

2016 $ (337,824)
2017 (337,824)
201$ (337,824)
2019 (337,824)
2020 (46,568)
Thereafter (32,598)

Changes in the Commission’s net pension liability were as follows:

Net pension liability, beginning of year S 6,305,091
Pension expense 629,604
Employer contributions (507091)
Net new deferred outflows and intlows (1.130,464)

Net pension liability, end of year S,..4.99iJ1t(

At June 30. 201 5, $33,678 payable to PERS, eqtial to the June 2015 reqtiired contribution, was
included in accotints payable.

12. Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description - The State Retirees Health and Welfare Benefits Fund, Pciblic Employees’
Benefits Program (PEEP) of the State of Nevada (Retirees Fund) was created in 2007 by the Nevada
Legislattire to account for the financial assets designated to offset the portion of current and future
costs of health and welfare benefits paid on behalf of State retirees. The Retirees’ Fund is a
multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined benefit plan with several participating employers, and is
administered by the Board of Public Employees’ Benefits Program of the State of Nevada. The
Retirees’ Fund provides benefits other than pensions to eligible retirees and their dependents
throtigh the payment of subsidies to the PEBP. PEBP administers a group health and life insurance
program for covered employees, both active and retired, of the State, and certain other participating
public employers within the State, including the Commission. Nevada Administrative Code (NAC)
287.530 establishes this benefit upon the retiree. All State public employees who retire with at
least five years of public service and who have State service are eligible to receive benefits from
the Retirees’ Fund. State service is defined as employment with any State agency, the Nevada
System of 1-ligher Education and any State Board or Commission. A portion of the monthly
premiums are deducted from pension checks and paid to the PEBP. The cost varies depending on
which health plan the retiree chooses, as well as the amount of subsidy they receive.

Implementation of GASB 15 — This Statement was implemented prospectively by the State
beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Legislation effective July 1, 2007. amended
the NRS making various changes regarding the management of the PEBP. NRS 287.0436
established an irrevocable trust fund, the Retiree’s Ftind, for the purpose of providing retirement
benefits other than a pension. The Retirees’ Fund issues a stand-alone financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. The State reports the Retiree’s Fund
as a trust fund. The Retirees’ Fund financial report may be obtained from the PEEP at the following
address:
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Public Employees’ Benefits Program
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 1001

Carson City, NV 89701

Contributions and Funding Policy — NRS 287.046 establishes a subsidy to pay the contributions
for the persons retired from the State. Contributions to the Retirees’ Fund are paid by the State
through an assessment of actual payroll paid by each State entity. For the period from July 1, 2014
through June 30, 2015, the rate assessed was .0270 of annual covered paytoll. The assessment is
based on an amount prescribed by the State Legislature. For the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014,
and 2013, the Commission contribtited $65,679, $60,263, and $65,695, respectively, to the plan.
These contributions equaled IOO% of the required contributions each year.

13. Joint Venture

The Commission is a member of the Silver State Energy Association (SSEA). SSEA was
established as a joint venture through an interlocal agreement among the member agencies
(Members), which, in addition to the Commission, include the City of Botilder City, Lincoln Power
District No. 1, Ovetton Power District No. 5 and the SNWA.

SSEA is an association of public agencies with the common goal of jointly planning, developing,
owning and operating power resotirces to meet their own needs and those of their customers. The
economies of scale prodticed by the SSEA offer improved project development opportunities and
power purchasing capabilities, the sharing of resources and expertise, and the opportunity for
jointly managed energy needs.

As appropriate projects are selected for development, the Members involved in each project enter
into a project service agreement (PSA) indicating each participating Member’s allocation of project
costs.

The business and other affairs of the SSEA are conducted by a Board of Directors consisting of one
director appointed by each Member. The appointed director may, but need not be, a member of the
governing body of the Member.

Financial information regarding SSEA can be obtained by writing:

Manager of Energy Accounting for the Silver State Energy Association
P.O. Box 99956, MS 115

Las Vegas, NV 89 193-9956

The Silver State Energy Association (SS EA) website is www.silverstateenergy.org/.
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14. Prior Period Adjustments

In fiscal year 2015, the Commission implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27; which required
retroactive recognition of the Commission’s proportionate share of PERS’ net pension liability.
The adoption of this statement resulted in increases in deferred outflows of resources of $527,504
and net pension liability of $6,305,091 and a decrease in net position of $5,777,587 on the entity-
wide statements of net position and activities.

In addition, during fiscal year 2015, the Commission discovered capital assets originally
constructed by a third party and donated to the Commission in 2002, had not been properly
recorded. The cost basis of the assets is $12,555,784 and an adjustment to capital assets was made
to the prior period for that amount. Corresponding increases to accumulated depreciation of
$3,761,438, unearned revenue of $7,843,163 and net position of $951,184 were recorded on the
proprietary fund financial statements.

In addition, it was determined in the current year that the previotisly refunded portion of the 2005i
bonds in 2012, in the amount of$10,305,000, shotild have been recorded as unearned revenue and
therefore, a prior period adjustment was recorded to increase unearned revenue by $8,882,148 and
net position by $906,886 and decrease the payable to customers by $9,789,034 on the proprietary
fund financial statements.

Lastly, the prior year net position was determined to be understated as a result of unrecorded
revenue in fiscal years 2013 and 2014; therefore, a prior period adjustment increasing net position
and decreasing the payable to customers was recorded in the amotint of $4,474,779 on the
proprietary fund financial statements.

15. Subsequent Events

Management has performed a search for, and determined there were no events subseqtient to June
30, 2015, reqtiiring accounting recognition or disclosure through December 8, 2015, which was the
date these financial statements were available to be issued.
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Proportionate Share of Statutorily Required Pension Contribution Information
Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20W and Prior Nine Fiscal Years*

Proportionate
share of the

co]lective net PERS
pension fiduciary net

Proportionate liability as a position as a
Proportion of share of the percentage of percentage of
the collective collective net Covered- covered- the total
net pension pension employee employee pension

Valuation Date liability liability (asset) payroll payroll liability

2014 0.04795% S 6,305,091 $ 2,348,229 268.50410% 76.31210%

* Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan is not available for years prior to the
sear ended Jtine 30. 2014. As the information becomes available this schedule will ultimately present information for
the ten most recent fiscal years.
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Proportionate Share of Statutorily Required Pension Contribution Information
Multiple-Em ployer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years*

Contributions Contributions
in relation to as a percentage

Statutorily the statutorily Contribution Covered- of covered-
required required deficiency employee employee

Valuation Date contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2015 S 527,504 $ 527,504 $ -0- $ 2,531,235 20.83979%

* Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan is not available for years prior to the
year ended June 30. 2015. As the information becomes available this schedule will ultimately present information for
the ten most recent fiscal years.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Budget Variance ith
Original Final Actual final Budget

REVENUES
Net investment income $ 14,287 $ 34,176 $ 148,752 $ 114,576
Multi-species surcharge 1,501,876 1.501.876 1.263,002 (238,874)

Total revenues 1,516,163 1.536.052 1,411,754 (124,298)

EXPENDIl’tJRES
Multi-species assessment 500,000 500.000 500,000
Other —

500.000 500.000 500.000

I-xcess ol reenues oser expenditures
and change in fund balance 1,016.163 1.036.052 1,111,754 375.702

Fund balance. beginning 3.114,975 3.791.992 8,125.76$ 4.333.776

Fund balance, ending S 4.131.138 S 4.828.044 5 9,537,522 $ 4.709.478

See notes to financial statements. 53
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STATISTICAL SECTION

(UNAUDITED)

This section of the Commission’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for the user’s understanding of the entity in conjunction
with the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information.
The information contained in this section is designed to aid in analyzing trends and in
determining the Commission’s overall financial health and operating strategies.

The statistical section includes information that management has determined to be helpful
to the user in the following general areas:

financial Trends
These schedules contain information to help the financial statement user

understand how the Commission’s financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the financial statement user

understand the relative contribution of each of the Commission’s customers to
revenues and to make assessments on the ability to continue to generate that
revenue

Debt capcicity
These schedules present information to help the financial statement user

assess the current levels of Commission debt and the ability to issue additional
debt in the future

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules provide demographic and economic indicators to help the

financial statement user understand the general environment in which the
Commission’s financial activities take place.

Operating Infornwtion
These schedules contain information about the Commission’s operations

and resources available to provide the services and perform the activities it has
been given by the State to fulfill.
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NET POSITION BY (‘ONIPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED)

Fiscal ‘ear

Table I

Governmental activities

Net investment iii capital assets
Restricted for research and development
Unrestricted

Total gosernmental actinities net position

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for operations arid inaintettance
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Total entity-ivide
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total entity-snide net position

2015 2014 2013 2008 2007 2006

S 4887 S 7673 S 10.925 S 19.196 S 35.121 S 46.102 S 33.762 5 14,045 $ 97.911 5 18(106
9,537,522 8125.768 5,203,611 3.468.550 2,139,130

(4,203,575) 2712,559 2,955,658 2,573,169 .924.972 2,916,470 3.145.590 3,090,809 2.306,710 10.934,221
5 5,338.834 5 0.846000 5 8170,194 S 6,060.915 S 4.099,223 S 2,962,572 $ 3,179,352 $ 3,104,854 $ 2,404,621 5 11,052.227

5 46.451,402 5 1,728.620 S 3.854.233 5 5.979,847 $ (4.219.164) 5 (4.270,307) $ (3,967,588) 5 (3,850,234) 5 (3.661,965)
712.991 712019 711.215 711,014 710,738 710.482 713,088 716,319 717,664 5 716,284

(46,037,0511 (5.170433) (3,137,388) (1,108,611) 8,484,670 8,372383 8.345.585 8,355,522 8,252,177 4.716,772
5 1.127.342 S (3,029,801) S 1.428.060 $ 5.582,250 5 4.976.244 $ 4,812,558 $ 5.091.085 5 5,221,607 $ 5,307,876 5 5.433.056

5 46.456.289 S 1,736.293 S 3.865,158 5 5.999.043 $ (4.184.0431 5 (4,224,205) 5 (3.933,826) 5 (3,836.189) $ (3,564,054) 5 118.006
10,250.513 8837,787 5,914.826 4,179.564 2,849868 710.482 713.088 716,319 717.664 716.284

(50,240,626) (2.757.881) (181.730) 1,464,558 10.409,642 11,288,853 11,491.175 11,446.331 10,558.887 15.650.993
5 6.466,176 5 7.816.196 S 9,598,254 5 11,643.165 5 9.075,467 5 7,775.130 5 8.270.437 5 8,326,461 5 7,712,497 5 16,485.283

2012 2011 2010 2009



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(Accrual basis of accounting)

LAST TEN FISCAL V EARS (tINAUDITED) Table 2

Fiscal ear

20W 23N 20W ZON 20W 09 2008 2007

Expenses
Go’ernnnenraJ actrnnes

Geseral,overrnresr S 2,637.347 S 2.59547 S 2,058.890 S 1.001.012 S 2 306.101 5 3275 830 S 2.010030 S 2730697 S 12,208,192 S 2.641.024

Business-type 0C05’;Ciey

Purser nrarketrv 25,79,606 27,386,283 41,031108 40,390,6W 31,483,124 40,226,983 46,050,317 55.743,898 57,173,246 62,986,316
Power delrvery 32.812.396 36.891.400 39.959.001 36,921.205 45.903,714 41,633.751 38,006,772 lO.b78.035 15.783.971 58.923.523

Total business-type activities espenses 57.992 002 64.277.683 81.000 109 87.41.843 87.387 838 81,860 735 84,057.189 66,422,933 73,257.217 121,915,839
Toralentirv-svtdeespenses 5 60.629.349 5 66.873,140 S 83.058.999 S 89.3l2,86 5 89.693.939 S 85,136.565 86,867.219 5 t,9.153 630 S 05.465,409 S 124.556 863

Program revenues

Gos’emnvenral actir,tres
Charges for semces

l’orveradnrrntstror,seeharoe 5 220.817 1,140 050 S 1.167.674 S 1,259,803 S 1,210 897 S 1.121.162 S 1,187,254 S 1,296,312 S 1,323,837 S 1.310.371
Warercharrtes 1.153.359 1,060,171 1.229,732 1.169.246 752,054 1.285,018 1,036.787 1.311.351 888,720 1,603,826
Multi-species surcharge 1.263,002 3.000,783 1.741.470 .362.759 1,375.160 625,814 503 162 595 723 547.450 525.144

Total 000emmentaiactivrtrespreoraroresenuos 2.637.178 5,201.004 4.138 801 3.791 809 3.337.911 3031.993 2,797.203 3202986 2,760,007 3,439,341

Business-type actisitres
Charges for sernces

Power sales
Powermorketrng 24,861.738 27,386.283 41,041,108 40,374,093 41.436,582 40,217,943 45,845,877 55,601,491 57,246.095 62,764,886
Power delivery 30.783.323 32.595.571 35.726.333 47.562.793 46.077.938 41.711,572 37.897,186 10.242,168 15.130.974 57,900.598

55.645,061 59.981.854 76.767.441 87.936.808 87.513.520 81.929.515 83.743.063 65.843,659 72.377.069 20.665.484
Total entity-wide program revenues S 58.282,239 5 69.182,858 S 80.906,325 S 91.720.697 S 90862.431 84961.509 5 86 940.266 S 69,846.015 5 75.137.076 S 124.104.825

(Continued)



COLORADO RIVER (‘OJIlSSIO

CIIASGES l\ \ET POSITIO5 (Continued)

(Accrual basis of accounting)

LAST TE FISCAL YEARS (l\4L’DlTED) Table 2

Fiscal ‘I ear

2014 20 20H 2009 2008 2006

Net expense
Govensn,e,slai aclv,t,es libel S 2,605.547 5 2,1,79,993 $ 528,038 S (333,350) S (069.650) 5 (595,989) S (122,933) 5 (9995 635) $ 273,173
Besiness.tvpesctivities (2.336.941) (4.295.829) 14.232.668) 525.043 126 682 68,780 (313.126) (579.274) (800.138) (1.250.355)
Total estitv-,v,da tel expense (2.347.110) S ((.690.282) S (2.152.674) S (.1)53.082 5 (206,668) S 1800 870) 5 (9)0.) 5) S (702.207) S (10,875.783) (977)82)

General resettiles anti other changes in net position
Gos’emn,ental activities

isuestnsest ,sconsn S 202 937 5 14,672 S 29,285 5 20,677 S (2,332 S 27,057 S 87,325 5 227,944 S 773,632 5 786,729
Land sales
Miscellaneous 67,653 55,587 41.218 82.409 26,’147 66,095
Transfers

Total vevernnsenru( ucr,,st,es 270,590 7039 29285 70895 9404) 27057 873’S 227.934 800.57) 852,824

Bus,ness-npe acl;nties
l,,vesvrsen, incense 171.23$ (2.063 78,478 12 635 2,811 22,495 )t3,603 493,005 751968 625,020
Abandonnsext loss (369,802)
N6scc(lat,cnus 4.065 68 327 33(63
Transfers

Total hos,sess’rsVe xCtis’iIies 171 2’S 16.128 78,478 00962 37.004 (347.387) 83,604 493,005 754.068 623.020
Total ent,ts’-ss’.de S 411 023 5 86,307 5 107.763 5 151.857 S (3(845 S (320.2501 $ 270 929 5 720,939 S .555.547 $ 1.477.844

Change in ltd tostlon
Goveannsenral uct,nst,es S 271) 121 S 2,675,806 $ 2,109.279 S 598,933 S (238,509) 5 (842,593) $ (508,664) S (05,011 5 (9)95,056) S 1,125,997

(2.175.7031 (4,279,701) (4,154.190) 60n006 63.686 (278,527) (130.522) (86.269) (125,180) (625,335)
Totalentiry.sssde $ (1.905.2821 S (1.603.895) S 12.044.911) $ 1.201 939 S (74.823) 5 (1.121.120) $ (639.186) S 18.742 $ (9.320.236) 5 500.662



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

FLM BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (tINAUDITED) Table 3

Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

General fund
Unassigned S 2040963 S 3,051,126 S 3304782 S 2878917 S 2222770 S 2,398.074 S 2,545592 5 2,582,644 5 2,015,540 5 2,130,668

All other gosenitnental funds
Restricted S 182.131 S 182.131
Reported in special
Tevenue funds,

Fort Mohave Development (14,162) 8,705,291
Research and Development 5 9,537.522 S 8.125,768 S 5,203.611 S 3,468.550 $ 2,139,130 S 827.864 S $72,912 S 732.616 377.679 198.834

Total all othergovemtnental funds S 9.537,522 S 8,125,768 S 5.203.611 S 3.468.550 S 2,139.130 S 827,864 5 872.912 S 732.616 S 545,648 5 9.086.256



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

ChANGES IN FUND BALAN(’ES, COY ERN.1ENTAL FUNDS
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (t’NAUDITED) Table 1

fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 200$ 2007 2006

Res cnues
Charges forservices S 1371176 S 2200,221 S 2,597.406 S 2.429.050 S 1,972,751 5 2.406,180 5 2.214,041 S 1,607,763 5 2.212,557 $ 2,914.197
Investment income 202.937 4.672 29,285 29,677 2,432 27.057 87,325 227,944 773,632 786.729
Multi-species surcharge 1.263.002 3,000.783 1,741.47$ 1,362.759 1.375.160 625,814 583,162 595,223 547,451 525.144
Land sales
Miscellaneous

67,653 55.587

_______________

41,218 82,409

_______________ _______________ _______________

26,947 66,095
Total revenues 2,907.768 5,271.263 4,168,169 3.862,704 5.442,752 3.059.051 2,884.52$ 3,430,930 3,560,587 4,292,165

Espenditures
General administration 2.9l .059 2,514.358 1.974.816 1.812.067 2.267.200 2.768.197 2.232,085 2.180(103 11.502,549 1.998,993
Multi-species assessment 459.851 143,603 441.215 405,805 389,269
Water purchases 15.158 15,074 14,244 15.131 14.270 15.277 15.889 15,411 15,393 18.017
Intergovernmental
Other - 73.330 18,183 49.936 25,318 7.992 89,709 40,230 292,577 217,365

Total expenditures 2.506,177 2.602.762 2.007,243 1.877.137 2,306,788 3,251,617 2,781,284 2.676.859 12.216,322 2.623,644

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under)
expenditures 401.591 2,665,501 2.160.926 1,985,567 1,135,964 (192,566) 103,244 754.071 (8,655,735) 1,668,521

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers Out

_________________ _________________ _________________ _________________ _________________ _________________ _________________ _________________ _________________

6,000.000

Net chattges in fund balances S 401.591 S 2.668.501 S 2.160.926 5 1.985.567 S 1.135,964 S 1192,566) S 103,244 S 754,071 $ (8.655.735) $ 7.668.521



COLORADO RISER COMMISSION

PRINCIPAL REVENUE PAYERS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Table S

F/V 2StS

Waler Pence (1) Penor Power (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3)
.Arlotiniolratiso Administrasise LCRMSCP Marketing Dolisrn’ F/Y 2013 F/S 2013 F/S 2012 FlY 2(111 F/S 2010 F/V 2)11)0 F/V 2088 F/I’ 2(107 F/S 2006

Cuslomor Charges Charges Charges Resennes Rt•-eflues Total Total Total Total Total Tolal Telal Telat Total Total

S I tt9 777 5 0.307 S 654 033 S 1010677 S 0004223 5 2 )liO?I8 S 0461 02) S 39073 22) S 5)307,950 S 49406766 S 53,298097 S 4055) 6)14 5 ‘31(662% 5 6925 20 5 61399 456
7.740 4,71) 26931 971.1178 - 1(110371 927 79) 2(2 0(12 675.1112 775 1,07 53.516 I II 591 I 119 9/6 958 91/5 630.342

- 474)0 64 9)5 3,54(14:15 7.773,265 II 426000 12. 40 820 8 634 733 5 467 ((95 6 257.106 2(9 607 )) °4% 026 3 527 054 9 71/lI 3111/ 111.318 1116
- 28 110 III (70.62)) 10 207 738 11/92,3(1/ 7952 926 7.233.604 8 702 ‘22 1611464 Iii 1s0 427 17325.1120 17.312.177 21.026,569

340 1.212 50,624 - 52(04 61/ 153 6043) 531’8 67.1St 3,505 6592) 81741 90499 07455
- 16 234 C5 .1411 I 782453 - 1 05601(9 1 069.709 I 777.3111 I 695 155 1.760 75(1 130.319 I 166 640 I 523.27(1 1,594.937 859 720

11264 8 042 769,119 21)03 68) 2 502 9116 3 454.052 2 467.3)2 246) 0)0 2 677.655 08 143 2 4611 554 4 215 603 4 655.125 5,647.039
• 12 025 4(1,772 1.319 695 - I 322 495 1.531,430 1.70)) 354 I 654,446 I 725 092 98.34) I 690 (1116 1.339.210 I .36)) 555 1,134,141
- 9.197 32,0)5 (.998,230 - 2(1411250 2.453 9)4 2.30) 147 25341(41 2.562.159 98.390 2,206 563 3,038,077 3.1(21.360 4.019,064
- t 3 429 3669) 2.589,390 - 2 639 5111 3 1194.059 2 632 ((25 2 493.361 2 671.367 116.003 3 147.1(57 3 118 42) 3,004,0)3 3.650 5911

55 456 205 473 0,093,103 - 9 234 032 11.217.7114 11.497.753 11.1116.542 10607.089 562.9116 I/I 4114 9599,2(07220,759 097 5,227.374
- 4 3)3 32,372 I 129.07) • 1.175 756 1.751,552 1.21(4 679 (.2944(10 3.500.170 90.071 1.139 32) 1.001 438 I 757.733 955 525

‘116
. - 6,976 6044 61,1,9 6 203 6.201 - - 534 697 9.117

1% 11711 - -
- 9 070 19,031 (796) 19 143 I 6 804 (9,8)5 211,363 17.906 8 635 5 935

353
. • 787 832 002 674 17,939 13.513 966 740) 7834 7,540

- - - - -
- 7,276 - - - 5.430813 4,795 106

boo1 $ I I’’ 550 $ 220,0(7 S 1263 652 5 24.561.735 5 28 590.790 $ 06 089.7115 $ 65 152 855 5 81(501.315 5 91,728 697 5 90939,675 5 84 965 887 $ 86 541.267 5 69 ((46 644 S 25 137.136 5 t 23 52) 825
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COLORADO RI\ ER COMMISSION

RATIOS OF OUTSThNDING DEBT

LAST TEN FISCAL EARS (LNLDITED) Table 6

General Obligation General Obligation General Obligation Power Delivers Power Uprating Hoover Uprating Power Power Total Charges Revenue Debt as a Debt per
Fiscal Refunding Refunding Refunding Refunding Refunding Refunding Deliser’ I)elivers Outstanding for to Debt Percentage of Capita
tear Series 2014E Series 2012E Series 2(111 B Series 20051 Series 2002 Series 2001 Series 1999A Series 1997 Debt Services Ratio Personal Income In Dollars

2006 S 653001)00 S 36420.000 S 6.305000 S 2345000 5 2.2(5.000 5(12.585.000 5124,104.825 110 5900 S 2868
2007 65.300.000 36.420.OOt) 6.305,000 1.805.000 1.135.000 (10.965.000 75,137,O7tt 068 I 49% 2,777
2008 65.300.000 36.420.000 6,305,000 1.235.000 109.260,000 69.046.645 063 I 370.0 2,768
2009 63.910,000 33,180000 6,305,000 635.000 104,060.000 86,540,266 083 1 48% 2,878
2010 62,500,000 29.765,000 6,305,000 98,570,000 84,961,509 086 40% 2,734
2011 60.33t).000 26,165.000 6,305,000 92,800,000 90,862,43) 098 I 29% 2,543
20)2 S 5,545,000 47,755.000 22,370.000 75,670,000 91,728,697 1.21 098% 1,955
2013 S 17,085,000 5,545,000 47.755,000 70.385,000 80,906,325 1 5 0 91% 1,848
2014 S 29,475.000 13,110,000 5,545,000 47,755,000 95,885,000 65,182,858 0.68 I 7% 2.425
2015 29,475,000 8,960,000 5,545,000 43,980,000 58,282,239 .33 (Il

Generally, debt of the Colorado River Commiss:on is allowed under the natural resource pros isions ot’the State As such, tire debt is tot subject to tlte debt limit as provided in the State constitution Hosvever, each debt issuaitce mid its correspondng
ptoject must be specifically authorized by thee State Legislature either during a full session (in the odd numbered years) or though the Interim Finance Comniinee (a committee composed of lecislators tltat meets as necessary to accommodate State needs
shert not in regular session) A;though a is possible that the Commission may issue debt that svoald nor he consideied natural resource debt, such debt svouid impact the State debt limit and svould also have to be appros’ed by the Legislature Such debt
has never been issued by the Commission and svill not he pursued in the foreseeable future

(I) Data sras rot available at the time of issuance



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

AVAILABLE REVENUE DEBT COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) Table 7

Debt Service
Less: Operating Net Available

Fiscal Year Gross Rev enucs Expenses Add: Depreciation Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage
(1)

2006 124104.825 120712.590 2.061.492 5.156728 1.420.000 5.517,972 6.937.972 079
2007 75,137.076 8L652.254 2.064.375 (4.450.803) 1.420.000 5.517.972 6.937.972 (0.64)
2008 69.046.645 65.577.632 2,041.430 5,510.443 1,705.000 5.579,181 7.2$4.t81 0.76
2009 86.540,266 80,649.088 2,036.989 7,928.167 5,200.000 5,305,610 10,505,610 0.75
2010 84,961.509 78,825,046 2,031.355 8,167,818 5,770.000 4.791,950 10,561,950 0.77
201! 90.862,43! 84.460,10! 2,030,633 8.432,963 5,490,000 5.012.438 10,502.438 0.80
2012 91.728.697 84,921.105 2.024,827 8,832.419 6.065.000 1,416,732 10.481,732 0.84
2013 80.906,325 78.792,267 2,024.826 4.138.884 4.005.000 3.242.334 7,247.334 0.57
2014 65.182.858 62.010.746 2.024.827 5.196.939 3.975.000 3.279.188 7,254.188 0.72
2015 58,282,239 55,799,470 2.346,94! 4.829,710 4,150.000 3.922,798 8,072,798 0.60

(1) Water and power customers arc contractually obligated to provide revenues sufficient to cover all operation and maintenance expenses except depreciation, plus all principal and interest
requirements on outstanding debt. Operating losses, accumulated deficits and negative coverage ratios are the result of not charging for certain recorded expenses’. i.e. depreciation. amortization
of debt and pre-operational expenses. As annual requirements of debt principal progressivel increase annual revenues are expected to exceed recorded expenses, because principal payments are
recorded as reductions of long-term debt rather than expenses. The losses, deficits and negative coverage ratios are expected to be progressively reduced and finally eliminated as the annual
retirement of debt principal increase. Note that operating expenses for fiscal 2007 include $9,500,000 in expenses to transfer the Fort Mohave Development fund monies to Clark County,
Nevada.

Gina
Rectangle



COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) Table $

Personal Per Capita Total Unemployment

(I) The Colorado River Commission (Commission) is primarily a wholesale provider of electric power and only holds in trust the rights of the State of Nevada to the waters of the
Colorado River. The Commission thus does not serve (except in limited capacity) end users of either water or power. In addition the customers served by the Commission are
statutoriR. not geographicall defined. However, the principal area sened b the customers of the Commission is the area encompassed by Clark County. Nevada. This
presentation is provided to give some limited demographic information to the reader. For complete information on the demographic makeup of Clark County the reader is
directed to the Counts website at http://ww\\.co.clark.nv.us/. Information on .ater treatment, delivery and pun evor information can be obtained at the Southern Nevada Water
Authority’s website at http://www.snwa.com/. Additional demographic infbrmation for the state can be obtained from the State of Nevada website at http://www.nv.gov/.

(2) Source: Nevada State Demographer.

(3) Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis.

(4) Source: Nevada Department of Employment Training and Rehabilitation. Clark County.

(5) Data was not available at the time of issuance.

\‘ear

2006
2007
2008
2009

2010
2011

2012
2013

2014
2015

(2)
Population

1.874.837
1.954.319
1.967.716
1.952.040
1.968.831

1.967.722
1.988.255
2,024.676
2.03 1.723
2.069.450

(3) (4) (4)Income Labor Force Rate
(3)

Income (in thousands)

70.802.847
74.630.629
7-L494.913

70.129.464
70.428.593
7 1.777.369
77.3 73 .3 82
77.298.937
$ 1.821.005

39.253
3 9.956
39,478
3 6. 160

36.05 7
36.48$
38.713
38.091

39,533
40.077

9 15.440

936.950
968.980
986.350
970,653
99 1.963

992.403
99 1.851

990.009
1.049,7 12(5)

4.3%
4.7%

6.3%
12.4%

15.3%
14.4%

11.2%
9.7%
7.9%
7.0%

a’

Gina
Rectangle



COLOR DO RIVER COMMISSION
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA Ii)

,JtTNE 30, 2015 and 2006 (L7%AUDITED)

June 30, 2015

Percentage of

Table 9

Clark Coiinti School District
Clark Counts, Nevada
W nn Las Vegas
Bellauio LiC
MG hI Grand HoteL Casino
ARIA Resort & Casino
Mandalay Bay Resort & Casino
Caesars Palace
University of Nevada, Las Vegas
Las Vegas Metropolilan Police Depailment

Clark County School Districl
Claik County, Nevada
Mandalay Bay Resort & Casino
Llnisersiiy of Nevada. las Vegas
Caesars Palace
Mirage Casino — Hotel
Venetian Casino Resorts
I as Vegas Metropol Han Pcil ice Department
Ii niversi B Medical Center
Rio S site I bid

Percentage of
Employees Total Employment Rank

30,000 to 39,999 3 90%
9,000 to 9,499 109% 2
7,500 to 7,999 0 86% 3
6,000 to 6,499 070% 4
5,50010 5,999 0 64% 5
5,500 to 5,999 064°u 6
5,500 to 5,999 064% 7
5.000 to 5,499 0 59% 8
1.000 to 4.599 0 47% 9
4,500104,999 0 47°, to

Ill The Colorado Riser Commission (Commission) is primarily a wholesale provider of electric power and only holds in trust the
Source Rev ada Department of Lmpbo mciii

(2) Note that Nevada Lasv prohibits the publishing of exact employment numbers

Emploeer EmploveesM

30.000 to 39.999
8.000 to 8,499
8.000 to 8,499
8,000 to 8,499
8,000 to 6,499
7,000 to 7.499
7,000 lo 7,499
5,50010 5,999
5.000 to 5,499
4,500 to 4,999

Total Employment Rank
368°,’
087°c 2
087% 3
087°c 4
0 87% 5
076% 6
o 76% 7
060% 8
055% 9
050% 10

June 30, 2006
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COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

EMPLOYEES BY DEPARTMENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) Table 10

Executive and Water Hydropower SNWS Power Delivery
Fiscal Year Administrative Department Department Energy Services 0 & M Total

2006 15 5 3 9 7 39
2007 13 4 9 6 35
200$ 13 9 6 34
2009 15 4 3 9 - 6 37
2010 13 3 3 9 6 34
2011 13 3 9 6 34
2012 13 3 3 9 6 34
2013 14 3 3 $ 6 34
2014 13 2 3 $ 7 33
2015 15 1 7 7 32



COLORADO RIVER COMNIISSJON

CAPI’I’AL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Table II

(‘RU POWER I)ELI VERY PROJECT SYSTEM 2

Miles of I ransinission tines

23t)-kV overhead lines
69-ky overhead lines
69-ky underground transmission lines

High-Voltage Substations
Transmission Substations (230-ky to 69-kV)
Distribution Substations (230-ky to 14 4-kV)
Distribution Substations (69-ky 10 3 $-kV)
Distribution Substations (69-kV to 41 6—ky)

‘I otal Substations

Metered Facilities (SNWA treatment and delivery facilities)tm

Fetal System Capacity in Megawatts

System S cipport In lormatioii
Comm us cat ion Netw ork

Miles of Oher optic cable
M cross us e radio sites

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 200 2007 2006

31 34 34 34 31 34 34 31 34 31
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17

120 107 95 82 70 70 68 59 50 41

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 I 000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

58 58 5$ 58 58 58 58 58 58 56
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

(I) Note all power related assets are owned band used in the Power Delivery Fund and are used in the posver delis er f’tinction

(2) The Power Delivcr S’steni (Sysiern) is a dedicated power transmission and delivery system that provides electric power resources to the facilities of the
Southern Nevada Water Authority With a total system capacity of 1,000 megawatts of transformer capacity the System is the 3rd largest transmission and
distribution system within the State of Nevada In addition, the System was designed with 00% redundancy including twin transformers The System is
normally operated at 50% capacIty on each of the twin facilities in each substation, In the event of catastrophic failtire, the remaining system can fully serve the
load while repairs are effected In addition, the transmission lines are a looped (circtilar) design allowing for teed to all facilities in either direction in the event of
a break somewhere in the 1oop This design is provided to ensure reliable deliver of water to the residents of Southern Nevada under almost any circtimstances

13) In addition to the metered facilities indicated in this table, the stall of the Commission provides operation and maintenance to an additional 10 power related
facilities otthe SNWA
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COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION

OPERATING INDICATORS

LAST TEN FISCAL \‘EARS (UXAUDITED)

Poser Purchases in legassatt Hours

Table 12

Customer

Southern Nevada Water Authorirv,u,

Basic Water Coinpan
litnet Metals Corporation
Olin Chlor Alkaline (formerly Pioneer Americas. CCC
Lhoist North America, Inc (Fromerly Chemical Lime Co
Tronox. CCC
American Pacific Corporation
Lincoln Counts Power Distrtct No I
Overton Posver District #5
Valley Electric Association
NV Enemy (formerly Nevada Power Company)
City of Boulder City

FR’ 2015 FR 2014 FR’ 2013 ff\ 2012 FR 2011 FR 2010 FR’ 2009 FR’ 200$ FR’ 20(17 FR’ 2006

— Total Total Total Total ‘I otal Total Total Total Total Total
2,172,526 2,32l,270 2,486.443 2.643.331 2,637.577 2.776.34l 2,151,774 2.202.554 2.599.998 3.715.976

32.517 31.788 29,886 32.0(0 32456 30,352 33.865 77.675 36.2(3 96,370
40(1.530 4(1(977 343.173 368.939 277949 219.606 343,587 741.855 311.154 610,202
243,017 272.761 222,273 237,558 248.713 23(483 193,307 259.847 292,920 311,815

2,650 2.5 16 2,496 2,540 2.946 2,894 3,179 6.762 3,778 7,834
28.496 119,634 1(4,593 112,392 (3,884 97,351 117,699 257.9(1 113,660 167,243
97.607 108,715 89.674 94,495 99,283 97,813 79,975 212,508 121,826 260,936
85,067 77.581 81,905 90,337 88.844 80,681 83,314 66.604 83.917 164,795
87,381 94,964 90,653 (01.289 105,334 95.426 91,013 2(9,304 111,624 255,002

100,105 117,806 109.780 (14,131 115,1(9 113,166 121,726 248,682 122,552 261,170
4(6,850 444.593 435,809 470,882 448,303 393.541 439.276 898,294 462.847 931,246

___________

37.851 33,060 46,135 88,723 71,844 43,062 $6,716 53,869 82,822
Total 3,766,746 4,030,551 4,039,945 4.314.039 4,259,133 4,215.49$ 3,701,777 5.378,737 4.3(1,358 6,$65,4l I

Power Purchases in Percentages

Southern Nesada Water AHtlioritV

Basic Water Coiiipanv
Timet Metals Corporation
Olin CliIoi Alkaline (formerly Pioneer Americas. LLC I
63

Tronox, LLC
American Pacific Corporation
Lincoln Counts Posver District No I
Overton Posser District 115
VaEes Electric Association
NV Eneig (formerly Nesada Poseer Company)
City of Boulder City

fR’2015 F/Y2014 FR’20l3 FR 2012 FR’2Otl FR 2(110 F/1’2009 ff12008 FR’2007 FR’ 2(106
Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total l’otal Total

5768% 57 59% 61 55% 61 26% 61 93% 65 87% 58 13% 4095% 6026% 54.14%
086% 079% 0.74°. 0.74% 0 76°c 0 72% 0 91% I 4400 084% I 40%

10.63% 9.95% 6.49% 855% 6.53°c 521% 9.28% 13 790,0 721% 8.89%
6.455 677°c 5.50% 551% 584% 56l0o 5.22% 483% 679 4.545’
0 075 006% 0 06° 0.065 007% 007% 009% 0.l3 009% 0.11%
3.4l° 2 97% 2 84% 261% 267°’o 2.31% 3.18% 4 80% 2 63% 2 44%
259% 2 70% 2 22° 2 I9° 2.33°c 2 32% 2.16% 3950 2 82°. 3.80%
226°o I 92°c 203°o 209° 209 191% 2.25% 3 l0 195% 2.40%
2 325 2 36°’ 2 24% 2.35% 24700 2 26°s 2.46° 4 08% 159% 3.71%
2 66 2.925 2.72% 2 65% 2 70% 2 68% 3.29% 462% 284% 380%

(I O7° (I 93°c (079% (0 92°.s tO 53°’o 9 34% II 87% 16 70°c 1073% 13,56%
000% 094% 082 107% 20$° I 70% 116% (61% 1.25% 1.21%

(I) Includes Megawatt Hour purchases for loads of all Commission customers. The Comniission owns and operates electric transmission and distribution capital assets for the exclusive use of the SNWA and the Basic
Industries complex in Henderson, NV. The Commission’s major posver deliveries are accomplished using these systems These total coniparisons are anticipated to be indicative of future sales as the Commission’s
customer base is anticipated to reitmaun relatively stable It is possible that some additional customers could utilize the Commission for electric power resource, but the remaining probable customers available to the
Commission under the changed legislative mandate must be part oftlte SNWA base and are not anticipated to materially change the reported megasvatt usage amounts.

(2) SNWA sales include purchases brokered by CRC employees acting on behalf of the SSEA to provide continuity of data related to Commission customers
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENTA UDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Chairman and Members of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Colorado River Commission
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Colorado River
Commission (the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015. and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents, and have issued our report thereon dated December 8, 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial
statements, we considered the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the basic financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Commission’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Commission’s basic
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A sign/Icant deficiency
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

Compliance and Other t’1atters. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s
basic financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of basic financial statement amounts, including whether the funds
established by the Commission, as listed in Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354.624 (5)(a)(1 through 5),
complied with the express purposes required by NRS 354.6241. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report. The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Commissions internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Commission internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Las Ve s, Nevada
December 8, 201 5




